
 

 

Steuben County Industrial Development Agency 

7234 Route 54 North 

PO Box 393 

Bath, NY 14810 

June 22, 2023 

 Regular Meeting Notice 

 

  

The Steuben County Industrial Development Agency will hold a Regular Business Meeting at 

12:00 pm on June 22, 2023.  This meeting is open to the public and those wishing to view the 

meeting as it is held may do so by visiting: 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/82782045888 

 

Sincerely,  

Mark Alger 

Board Chair 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/82782045888


STEUBEN COUNTY INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY 
REGULAR MEETING OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS AGENDA 

JUNE 22, 2023, 12:00 PM 
 

1. Call to Order – Quorum Present     Alger 
 

2. Secretary’s Report:        
 April 27, 2023 Minutes      Strobel 
 
 

3. Treasurer’s Report: 
            April & May 2023 Financials      Russo 
 
4. 2022 Final Performance Report     Johnson 
   

5. New Business:         
a) Updated Sexual Harassment Policy   Johnson 
b) Sky Corning Pulteney Plaza     Johnson 

 
6. Old Business: 

a) TJA-NY-Cohocton Solar Farm Final Resolution  Staats 
b) Senator Skoufis Response     Johnson 
c) Facilities Maintenance     Johnson 

• Larry’s Paving quote 

• Tom Sestak Construction quote 

• Insurance deductible replacement of basement 
French door 

7. Other Business: 
a) Legislative Update      Johnson 

 
8. Executive Sessions –  
 Public Officers Law, Article 7, Open     Alger 
 Meetings Law Section 105, Paragraph 1f, the  
 employment history of a particular person. 

Public Officers Law, Article 7, Open Meetings Law 
Section 105, Paragraph 1g, proposed acquisition of real property.  
       

 
9. Adjournment        Alger 



Steuben County Industrial Development Agency 

7234 Route 54N, P.O. Box 393, Bath, NY 14810 

Minutes of the Regular Meeting April 27, 2023 

 

I. CALL TO ORDER: The Regular Meeting of the Steuben County Industrial Development 

Agency (SCIDA) was called to order at 12:00 pm, by Chairman Mark Alger.  Chairman 

Alger confirmed that there was a quorum present. 

 

Present: Mark Alger   Chairman  

  Scott VanEtten  Vice Chair  

  Tony Russo   Treasurer 

Christine Sharkey  Member 

Michelle Caulfield  Member  

Absent: Dean Strobel   Secretary 

Mike Davidson  Member 

Staff: James Johnson  Executive Director 

Jill Staats   IDA Staff (via Zoom) 

  Stacy Housworth  IDA Staff 

  Russ Gaenzle   SCIDA Counsel 

  Stephen Maier  Harris Beach 

 

Guests: Kam Keeley   Three Rivers Development 

  Larry Foor   Foor & Associates 

 

II. SECRETARY’S REPORT: A motion to approve the March 23, 2023, Regular Meeting 

Minutes of the Steuben County Industrial Development Agency as presented in the 

board materials was made by Chris Sharkey, seconded by Scott VanEtten.  All in favor.  

Approved. 

 

III. TREASURER’S REPORT:  

a) March 2023 Financial Statements: 

The March 2023 financial statements were reported to the board.  A motion to 

approve the financial statements as presented and included in the board 

materials was made by Scott VanEtten, seconded by Michelle Caulfield.  All in 

favor.  Approved. 

 

 

 



 

IV. NEW BUSINESS: 

a) Larry Foor and Associates, Building Conditions Report: 

Larry Foor presented the board with the results of the building conditions study 

performed in February 2023.  Larry touched on the assessment of the building’s 

interior and exterior conditions, proposed improvements, and cost analysis of 

maintenance items.  After a board discussion, it was agreed to move forward 

with maintenance work of the parking lot, carpet, and other life/health 

maintenance. 

b) NY Bath (6105 Scudder Road) LLC Project: 

Deputy Director Staats presented the application and initial resolution to the 

board.  The total investment of this project is $5,000,000 with approximately 35 

short-term construction jobs to be created.  Estimated benefits include PILOT, 

mortgage and sales tax savings totaling $2,074,400 with a benefit-to-cost-ratio of 

4:1.  

A motion to accept the signed application and approve the initial resolution as 

presented in the board packet was made by Michelle Caulfield and seconded by 

Chris Sharkey.  All in favor.  Approved. 

 

V. Old Business: 

a) Baron Winds Sales Tax Extension:  

Executive Director Johnson presented the board with the 6-month sales tax 

extension request made by Baron Winds.  Baron Winds cites project delays as 

the reason for the extension request through September 30, 2023.  Although this 

approval was approved as an administrative action, let the minutes reflect the 

board recognizes the action as a motion made by Chris Sharkey, seconded by 

Tony Russo.  All in favor.  Approved. 

b) NY Pulteney I PILOT Start Date Authorizing Resolution: 

Deputy Director Staats presented the board with an authorizing resolution for a 

one-year sales tax and PILOT extension.  The board agreed that language 

stipulating the project should be substantially complete at the end of the 

extension should be added to the closing documents. A motion to accept the 

resolution was made by Scott VanEtten, seconded by Tony Russo.  All in favor.  

Approved.  

VI. Other Business: 
a) Project Performance Updates: 

Executive Director Johnson and Deputy Director Staats are currently following up 
on projects that did not meet project performance in 2022. 

b) State Budget Update: 
Executive Director updated the board on budget discussions and the major items 
being negotiated between the Governor and the Legislature. 



 
c) May and June 2023 Board Meeting Dates: 

The May 2023 meeting has been cancelled due to a date conflict with the annual 
NYS EDC Conference in Cooperstown.  The board will reconvene on June 22, 
2023.  

VII. Executive Session: – Public Officers Law, Article 7 Open Meetings Law – Section 105, 

Paragraph 1f - The employment history of a particular person. 

The board entered Executive Session at 1:06pm.  A motion to enter Executive Session 

was made by Scott VanEtten, seconded by Tony Russo.  All in favor.  Approved. 

The board left Executive Session at 1:20pm.  A motion to leave Executive Session was 

made by Scott VanEtten, seconded by Tony Russo.  All in favor.  Approved. 

 

VIII. Employee Salary: 

A motion to change Executive Director Johnson’s salary was made by Chris Sharkey, 

seconded by Michelle Caulfield.  All in favor.  Approved. 
 

IX. ADJOURNMENT 

With no further business to discuss, a motion was made by Scott VanEtten to adjourn 

the meeting at 1:21 pm, seconded by Tony Russo.  All in favor.  Approved. 

 

Respectfully submitted,  

Mark Alger 

Chair 
 

 

 



Apr 30, 23

ASSETS
Current Assets

Checking/Savings
200 · Five Star Bank checking 1,593,549.93
209 · Escrow Project Account 12,316.15
210 · Petty cash 100.00
213 · Five Star CD 225274906 606,034.33
215 · Chemung Canal Trust Company 1,469,697.72
218 · Five Star CD 225343789 1,000,000.00

Total Checking/Savings 4,681,698.13

Total Current Assets 4,681,698.13

Fixed Assets
100 · Land - B&W Railroad 380,250.00
101 · B&H Railroad 102,653.00
102 · B&H Railroad Equipment 14,250.00
103 · Building - Office 161,544.00
104 · Engine House - Livonia 100,000.00
106 · Land - Railroad 39,979.00
107 · Office Equipment 33,968.35
108 · B&W Railroad 380,250.00
109 · Building Improvements 15,100.00
111 · B & H Railroad 922,522.80
112 · Accumulated Depreciation -946,831.24
150 · Website Design 30,000.00

Total Fixed Assets 1,233,685.91

Other Assets
151 · Accumulated Amortization -30,000.00
180 · Pension Asset 72,419.00
199 · Deferred Outflows of Resources 164,578.00

Total Other Assets 206,997.00

TOTAL ASSETS 6,122,381.04

LIABILITIES & EQUITY
Liabilities

Current Liabilities
Other Current Liabilities

2100 · Payroll Liabilities 847.27

261 · Deferred Inflows of Resources 260,359.00

Total Other Current Liabilities 261,206.27

Total Current Liabilities 261,206.27

Total Liabilities 261,206.27

Equity
1110 · Retained Earnings 5,393,453.36
1120 · Temp Restricted-Millennium 153,557.41
1125 · Temp. Restricted Infrastructure 12,316.27
Net Income 301,847.73

Total Equity 5,861,174.77

TOTAL LIABILITIES & EQUITY 6,122,381.04

1:11 PM SCIDA
05/08/23 Balance Sheet
Accrual Basis As of April 30, 2023

Page 1



 1:06 PM

 05/08/23

 Cash Basis

 SCIDA

 Profit & Loss Budget Performance
 April 2023

Apr 23 Budget Jan - Apr 23 YTD Budget Annual Budget

Ordinary Income/Expense

Income

2140 · Administrative Income 0.00 130,886.25 418,125.00 523,545.00 1,570,635.00

2401 · Interest Income 245.12 708.34 988.25 2,833.36 8,500.00

2770 · Miscellaneous Income 11.00 166.67 67.25 666.68 2,000.00

2810 · Business Development Support 0.00 0.00 75,000.00 75,000.00 75,000.00

2813 · Grant Income Site Development 0.00 16,000.00 0.00 64,000.00 200,000.00

Total Income 256.12 147,761.26 494,180.50 666,045.04 1,856,135.00

Gross Profit 256.12 147,761.26 494,180.50 666,045.04 1,856,135.00

Expense

6145 · Continuing Education 0.00 743.00 1,644.35 2,972.00 8,927.00

6160 · Dues and Subscriptions 1,279.18 766.00 5,589.82 3,064.00 9,200.00

6180 · Insurance

6181 · Health Insurance 3,135.75 3,750.00 21,078.75 15,000.00 45,000.00

6182 · Dental Insurance 0.00 186.50 766.20 746.00 2,238.00

6183 · Allowances 975.50 975.50 3,414.25 3,902.00 11,706.00

6185 · Liability Insurance 0.00 833.33 1,472.00 3,333.32 10,000.00

6190 · Disability Insurance 0.00 141.66 979.36 566.64 1,700.00

6195 · Life Insurance 0.00 112.50 0.00 450.00 1,350.00

6196 · Workers' Compensation 1,740.70 145.83 2,961.00 583.32 1,750.00

Total 6180 · Insurance 5,851.95 6,145.32 30,671.56 24,581.28 73,744.00

6240 · Miscellaneous Office Expenses 0.00 250.00 253.13 1,000.00 3,000.00

6250 · Postage and Delivery 301.08 250.00 491.16 1,000.00 3,000.00

6270 · Professional Fees

6650 · Accounting 1,500.00 0.00 9,500.00 9,500.00 9,500.00

6655 · Consulting 0.00 1,250.00 0.00 5,000.00 15,000.00

Total 6270 · Professional Fees 1,500.00 1,250.00 9,500.00 14,500.00 24,500.00

 Page 1 of 2



 1:06 PM

 05/08/23

 Cash Basis

 SCIDA

 Profit & Loss Budget Performance
 April 2023

Apr 23 Budget Jan - Apr 23 YTD Budget Annual Budget

6276 · Infrastructure Development Fees 0.00 752.82

6277 · Site Development 0.00 20,833.33 0.00 83,333.32 250,000.00

6340 · Telephone 510.46 312.50 1,349.03 1,250.00 3,750.00

6350 · Travel & Ent 72.20 666.66 -287.18 2,666.64 8,000.00

6390 · Utilities 271.67 358.33 1,034.06 1,433.32 4,300.00

6465 · Community Engagement 0.00 541.66 0.00 2,166.64 6,500.00

6495 · Cleaning 230.00 250.00 920.00 1,000.00 3,000.00

6505 · Conferences 1,004.19 541.66 1,299.19 2,166.64 6,500.00

6515 · Copier 183.14 208.33 921.65 833.32 2,500.00

6535 · Internet access 60.00 65.00 240.00 260.00 780.00

6540 · Legal Services 0.00 375.00 4,000.00 1,500.00 4,500.00

6545 · Maintenance 8,587.50 4,166.66 8,985.00 16,666.64 50,000.00

6550 · Office Supplies 376.84 397.91 421.11 1,591.64 4,775.00

6560 · Payroll Expenses 27,935.43 27,466.69 105,650.31 109,866.72 329,600.00

6561 · Payroll Taxes 2,200.05 2,145.83 8,303.80 8,583.36 25,750.00

6576 · Project Costs 276.20 2,083.33 4,401.34 8,333.36 25,000.00

6590 · Refuse 36.00 36.00 150.50 149.00 437.00

6595 · Retirement 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 36,988.00

6625 · Technology upgrades 202.50 416.66 598.75 1,666.72 5,000.00

6645 · Marketing 1,262.75 2,083.33 5,882.75 8,333.36 25,000.00

6647 · Manufacturing Day Video & Event 0.00 679.41 0.00 2,717.72 8,153.00

6651 · Payroll Fees 328.17 223.16 1,188.23 892.72 2,678.00

Total Expense 52,469.31 73,255.77 193,961.38 302,528.40 925,582.00

Net Ordinary Income -52,213.19 74,505.49 300,219.12 363,516.64 930,553.00

Net Income -52,213.19 74,505.49 300,219.12 363,516.64 930,553.00

 Page 2 of 2



May 31, 23

ASSETS
Current Assets

Checking/Savings
200 · Five Star Bank checking 1,539,961.70
209 · Escrow Project Account 12,316.15
210 · Petty cash 100.00
213 · Five Star CD 225274906 606,034.33
215 · Chemung Canal Trust Company 1,469,822.53
218 · Five Star CD 225343789 1,009,500.00

Total Checking/Savings 4,637,734.71

Total Current Assets 4,637,734.71

Fixed Assets
100 · Land - B&W Railroad 380,250.00
101 · B&H Railroad 102,653.00
102 · B&H Railroad Equipment 14,250.00
103 · Building - Office 161,544.00
104 · Engine House - Livonia 100,000.00
106 · Land - Railroad 39,979.00
107 · Office Equipment 33,968.35
108 · B&W Railroad 380,250.00
109 · Building Improvements 15,100.00
111 · B & H Railroad 922,522.80
112 · Accumulated Depreciation -946,831.24
150 · Website Design 30,000.00

Total Fixed Assets 1,233,685.91

Other Assets
151 · Accumulated Amortization -30,000.00
180 · Pension Asset 72,419.00
199 · Deferred Outflows of Resources 164,578.00

Total Other Assets 206,997.00

TOTAL ASSETS 6,078,417.62

LIABILITIES & EQUITY
Liabilities

Current Liabilities
Other Current Liabilities

2100 · Payroll Liabilities 1,187.34

261 · Deferred Inflows of Resources 260,359.00

Total Other Current Liabilities 261,546.34

Total Current Liabilities 261,546.34

Total Liabilities 261,546.34

Equity
1110 · Retained Earnings 5,393,453.36
1120 · Temp Restricted-Millennium 153,557.41
1125 · Temp. Restricted Infrastructure 12,316.27
Net Income 257,544.24

Total Equity 5,816,871.28

TOTAL LIABILITIES & EQUITY 6,078,417.62

8:42 AM SCIDA
06/06/23 Balance Sheet
Accrual Basis As of May 31, 2023

Page 1



 8:53 AM

 06/06/23

 Cash Basis

 SCIDA

 Profit & Loss Budget Performance
 May 2023

May 23 Budget Jan - May 23 YTD Budget Annual Budget

Ordinary Income/Expense

Income

2140 · Administrative Income 0.00 130,886.25 418,125.00 654,431.25 1,570,635.00

2401 · Interest Income 9,645.66 708.33 10,633.91 3,541.69 8,500.00

2770 · Miscellaneous Income 0.00 166.67 67.25 833.35 2,000.00

2810 · Business Development Support 0.00 0.00 75,000.00 75,000.00 75,000.00

2813 · Grant Income Site Development 0.00 16,000.00 0.00 80,000.00 200,000.00

Total Income 9,645.66 147,761.25 503,826.16 813,806.29 1,856,135.00

Gross Profit 9,645.66 147,761.25 503,826.16 813,806.29 1,856,135.00

Expense

6145 · Continuing Education 0.00 743.00 1,644.35 3,715.00 8,927.00

6160 · Dues and Subscriptions 902.79 766.00 6,492.61 3,830.00 9,200.00

6180 · Insurance

6181 · Health Insurance 3,135.75 3,750.00 24,214.50 18,750.00 45,000.00

6182 · Dental Insurance 459.72 186.50 1,225.92 932.50 2,238.00

6183 · Allowances 975.50 975.50 4,389.75 4,877.50 11,706.00

6185 · Liability Insurance 0.00 833.33 1,472.00 4,166.65 10,000.00

6190 · Disability Insurance 480.24 141.66 1,459.60 708.30 1,700.00

6195 · Life Insurance 1,254.99 112.50 1,254.99 562.50 1,350.00

6196 · Workers' Compensation 0.00 145.83 2,961.00 729.15 1,750.00

Total 6180 · Insurance 6,306.20 6,145.32 36,977.76 30,726.60 73,744.00

6240 · Miscellaneous Office Expenses 29.45 250.00 282.58 1,250.00 3,000.00

6250 · Postage and Delivery 284.00 250.00 775.16 1,250.00 3,000.00

6270 · Professional Fees

6650 · Accounting 0.00 0.00 9,500.00 9,500.00 9,500.00

6655 · Consulting 0.00 1,250.00 0.00 6,250.00 15,000.00

Total 6270 · Professional Fees 0.00 1,250.00 9,500.00 15,750.00 24,500.00

 Page 1 of 2



 8:53 AM

 06/06/23

 Cash Basis

 SCIDA

 Profit & Loss Budget Performance
 May 2023

May 23 Budget Jan - May 23 YTD Budget Annual Budget

6276 · Infrastructure Development Fees 0.00 752.82

6277 · Site Development 0.00 20,833.33 0.00 104,166.65 250,000.00

6340 · Telephone 294.70 312.50 1,643.73 1,562.50 3,750.00

6350 · Travel & Ent 436.12 666.66 148.94 3,333.30 8,000.00

6390 · Utilities 192.88 358.33 1,226.94 1,791.65 4,300.00

6465 · Community Engagement 0.00 541.66 0.00 2,708.30 6,500.00

6495 · Cleaning 230.00 250.00 1,150.00 1,250.00 3,000.00

6505 · Conferences 2,186.57 541.66 3,485.76 2,708.30 6,500.00

6515 · Copier 183.14 208.33 1,104.79 1,041.65 2,500.00

6535 · Internet access 60.00 65.00 300.00 325.00 780.00

6540 · Legal Services 0.00 375.00 4,000.00 1,875.00 4,500.00

6545 · Maintenance 1,707.50 4,166.66 10,692.50 20,833.30 50,000.00

6550 · Office Supplies 0.00 397.91 421.11 1,989.55 4,775.00

6560 · Payroll Expenses 36,254.34 27,466.66 141,904.65 137,333.38 329,600.00

6561 · Payroll Taxes 2,833.52 2,145.83 11,137.32 10,729.19 25,750.00

6576 · Project Costs 1,541.52 2,083.33 5,942.86 10,416.69 25,000.00

6590 · Refuse 36.00 36.00 186.50 185.00 437.00

6595 · Retirement 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 36,988.00

6625 · Technology upgrades 105.00 416.66 703.75 2,083.38 5,000.00

6645 · Marketing 0.00 2,083.33 5,882.75 10,416.69 25,000.00

6647 · Manufacturing Day Video & Event 0.00 679.41 0.00 3,397.13 8,153.00

6651 · Payroll Fees 365.42 223.16 1,553.65 1,115.88 2,678.00

Total Expense 53,949.15 73,255.74 247,910.53 375,784.14 925,582.00

Net Ordinary Income -44,303.49 74,505.51 255,915.63 438,022.15 930,553.00

Net Income -44,303.49 74,505.51 255,915.63 438,022.15 930,553.00

 Page 2 of 2



 

 

memo 
 

To: Board of Directors  

From:  James C. Johnson 

CC:  Stacy Housworth, Jill Staats 

Date: 6/5/2023 

Re: 2022 Performance  

 

Based on an initial overview of the 2022 PARIS reports, Steuben County IDA had 58 active 

projects for the year, an increase of seven from the prior year.   

During the 2022 reporting period, IDA projects totaled $741,860,389 in new private sector 

investment, representing a $553,093,569 increase over the previous year.  IDA projects also 

generated $11,128,123 in PILOT revenue which was distributed to municipalities and school 

districts throughout the County. This represents a $383,669 increase from the prior year. 

In addition, active IDA projects supported 6,901 jobs in 2022 which was 200 more than the prior 

year. However, eleven companies reported fewer jobs than the prior year.  The 2022 

employment accounted for $1,045,291,985 in payroll, $119 million more than the prior year.  

In 2022, there were 20 companies who failed to reach or maintain their original employment 

goals set at time of application resulting in a 1,496 underperformance of jobs.  Out of this 

number, three companies are still within their three-year employment creation window and 

include: 

Clark Specialty  

LP Building Solutions  

Northside Place  

 

The combined employment number these projects need to reach to meet the job commitments 

is 62. 



2 

In addition, 2022 was the final year of benefits for three projects which have consistently failed 

to reach/maintain employment commitments:  

Corning Photonics 

Corning Photonics Phase II 

Corning C Building  

After this reporting year, these projects will no longer be included.  The combined job 

commitment for these projects is 1,978. 

When removing the employment from those projects still within the three-year employment 

window and the three projects which will no longer report after this reporting period, IDA 

projects have surpassed employment goals by 544 employees during the 2022 reporting year. 

The remaining projects owners were contacted to determine why they have not 

met/maintained their employment commitments.  The responses and staff recommendations 

are outlined below. 

2-4 Market Street – Because of the pandemic the business was not able to open until a year 

after their original plan.  The business model relied heavily on corporate travelers.  Since the 

pandemic, corporate travel is still at a reduced capacity which has prevented the anticipated 

growth.  In addition, the company has struggled to fill open positions. 

Staff Recommendation – Continue to monitor the situation and reassess employment totals in 

one year.  

Automated Cells and Equipment – The company is on pace to see a 38% increase in sales over 

2021. However, they have also seen operational changes post covid that have impacted local 

employment.  This includes shared employees with their sister facility in Rochester and hiring 

staff who are now working remote.  This has resulted in a drop in employment. However, the 

company signed a 15-year lease and expects to hire additional local employees in 2023.   

Staff Recommendation – Continue to monitor the situation and reassess employment totals in 

one year.  

B&H Railroad – Staff followed up and found the project failed to report employees from the 

Lakeville Railroad who are dedicated to this project.  With these jobs included, employment 

increased to eight as of the end of the reporting period with one open position which has since 

been filled allowing the project to meet its employment goal.   

Staff Recommendation – With the updated numbers it is recommended that no further action 

be taken.    

CPP I - The project is below its job thresholds due to a lower maintenance need resulting from 

newer equipment and transmission deficiencies which limits the project generation capacity.   

Staff Recommendation – Continue to monitor the situation and reassess employment totals in 

one year.  



3 

CMOG – The company continues to recover from COVID reductions and increased employment 

by six in 2022.  While the project is still under the original employment goals, the company is 

recruiting for additional open positions that will increase employment back to 160. 

Staff Recommendation – Continue to monitor the situation and reassess employment totals in 

one year.  

Corning War Memorial – As in years past, this project included with the performance report a 

list of local third-party services that are utilized to manage the project.  When including these 

services in the job count, the employment impact exceeds the original job commitments. 

Staff Recommendation – Accept local third-party services toward job commitments.  

East Lake Holdings – At the time of the report the project was one job below its committed jobs.  

Because of the seasonality of the business, the project increases employment to 18 FTE during 

the tourism season.  This exceeds the total commitment by 4 jobs for over half the year. 

Staff Recommendation – Accept seasonal employment numbers toward employment goal at 

50% discount due to the fact they only work half of the year.  This would increase employment 

totals by 2 which would exceed the project job commitments.   

FHFCU – The company’s growth at the project location was delayed because of COVID and the 

company is one year behind their employment plan.  In addition to a delay, changes in the 

delivery of services have changed the employment make up of the entire operation.  The need 

for tellers has declined, however this will increase the need for administrative and back-office 

hires which will ultimately increase the total employment at the project site. 

Staff Recommendation – Continue to monitor the situation and reassess employment totals in 

one year.  

Hilton Garden Inn - The hotel currently has 43 FT&PT employees and has job postings for 

multiple positions which are posted on iHire and are organically distributed to multiple job 

posting sites.  Turnover is a problem, as 60 employees left their positions in 2022.  While 10 of 

these terminations were for cause, the other 50 were voluntary with little notice.   

Staff Recommendation – Because of the labor market challenges staff recommendation is to 

take no action and continue to annually monitor employment.   

Marzo Brown – The project has struggled to attract a second dentist to the office which has 

delayed hiring additional support staff.  Since the report was submitted, a dentist has been hired 

and other hiring has followed bringing the total employment to 19 from the 15 reported.  The 

company growth plan has additional staff being hired as new patients are attracted to the 

practice allowing for the employment totals to meet the committed levels by the end of 2023. 

Staff Recommendation – Continue to monitor the situation and reassess employment totals in 

one year.  

NYSEG Erwin Valley - This project is an infrastructure project to support growth in other 

manufacturers in the Erwin area.  The resulting job growth has occurred but as part of outside 

business growth utilizing this investment. 

Staff Recommendation – No further action    



4 

Pulteney Plaza – The original employment goals anticipated a 24-hour grocery store which 

never happened.  With current market conditions the project does not anticipate this to occur 

and as a result there has been a request to the board to consider lowering the job commitment 

down to 40. 

Staff Recommendation – Due to the impacts of COVID on the 24-hour retail model a reduction 

in employment should be considered. 

The Gunlocke Company - Staff met with the company in January when the reports were sent 

out and learned that sales continue to increase as the pandemic impacts ease.  In addition, 

product lines that were moved from Wayland to other sites outside of the State are being 

shifted back to NY.  These changes will impact employment at the location over the coming 

months. 

Staff Recommendation – Continue to monitor the situation and reassess employment totals in 

one year.  

Wycoff Gas Storage – Staff contacted the project, and the Wyckoff Gas Storage facility has been 

subject to unfavorable commodity pricing for its storage/withdrawal business model.  The 

recent spike in inflation has also put tremendous pressure on the OPEX required to maintain the 

compression and equipment at Wyckoff.  The company is hoping commodity pricing will 

normalize in 2023 and they are working with vendors to look for operating efficiencies which 

will allow the project to once again reach employment goals.   

Staff Recommendation – The project had previously reached its employment goals.  Staff 

recommends continued monitoring and reassess employment totals in one year.  

 

  

 



Steuben County IDA 

Memo 
To: Jamie Johnson, Executive Director 

From: Stacy L. Housworth, Finance and Compliance Manager 

cc:  

Date: June 5, 2023 

Re: NYS Sexual Harassment Policy Changes 

 
Jamie,  
 
New York State recently updated its sexual harassment prevention policy and training 
requirements, which the IDA will need to incorporate into their policy and 
communication with employees and board members.  Harris Beach provided us with the 
updated policy, attached below.  The areas highlighted in red are new/significant 
language changes from the IDA’s previous policy.  Below the updated policy is the IDA’s 
original policy attached for reference. 
 
NYS has offered a brief overview of the new language changes and are offered below:  

▪ Harassment does not need to be "severe or pervasive" to be illegal in New York. 
▪ Adds more examples of sexual harassment, discrimination, and retaliation, 

including circumstances in which sexual harassment can occur while working 
remotely. 

▪ Adds a section on bystander intervention and provides tools and methods that 
can be used when an employee witnesses discrimination or harassment. 

▪ Adds language regarding gender diversity and gender-based harassment and 
discrimination, which can include gender stereotyping and treating employees 
differently because they identify as cisgender, transgender or nonbinary. 

▪ Provides emphasis and guidance on supervisors' and managers' responsibility to 
report harassment and discrimination. 

https://www.ny.gov/combating-sexual-harassment-workplace/sexual-harassment-prevention-model-policy-and-training
https://www.ny.gov/sites/default/files/atoms/old-files/StandardsSexualHarassmentPreventionTraining.pdf
https://www.ny.gov/sites/default/files/atoms/old-files/StandardsSexualHarassmentPreventionTraining.pdf
https://www.shrm.org/resourcesandtools/hr-topics/organizational-and-employee-development/pages/ask-hr-what-should-a-witness-do-when-a-client-sexually-harasses-a-co-worker.aspx


2 

▪ Explains that harmless intent is not a defense for harassment and discrimination, 
and that the impact of the behavior on a person is what counts. 

▪ Adds information regarding the New York State Division of Human Rights' sexual 
harassment hotline. 

▪ New York's law is stricter than federal law, which holds that harassment must be 
severe or pervasive to be considered illegal. 

▪  Sexual harassment can occur in texts, e-mails and Zoom meetings. 
▪  Offers some tips for bystanders who witness harassment in the workplace. They 

could interrupt and distract the harasser, ask a third party to intervene, take notes 
to benefit a future investigation, or check in with the person who was harassed 
after the incident. 

Harris Beach did confirm that the Sexual Harassment Complaint Form that the Board 
approved in February 2023 has not changed. 
 
The IDA uses the sexual harassment supervisor and employee training through our 
insurance carrier, Philadelphia Insurance.  Any required training changes will be 
included in the September 2023 training course.   
 
 
Sincerely,  
 
 
Stacy L. Housworth 

https://www.eeoc.gov/harassment#:~:text=Harassment%20becomes%20unlawful%20where%201%2cintimidating%2c%20hostile%2c%20or%20abusive.


 

Adoption of this policy does not constitute a conclusive defense to charges of unlawful sexual harassment. Each claim of sexual harassment will be 

determined in accordance with existing legal standards, with due consideration of the particular facts and circumstances of the claim, including but not 

limited to the existence of an effective anti-harassment policy and procedure. 

 
 

 
Purpose and Goals 

 

The Steuben County Industrial Development Agency (“SCIDA”) is committed to maintaining a workplace free 

from harassment and discrimination. Sexual harassment is a form of workplace discrimination that subjects an 

employee to inferior conditions of employment due to their gender, gender identity, gender expression (perceived 

or actual), and/or sexual orientation.  Sexual harassment is often viewed simply as a form of gender-based 

discrimination, but SCIDA recognizes that discrimination can be related to or affected by other identities beyond 

gender. Under the New York State Human Rights Law, it is illegal to discriminate based on sex, sexual 

orientation, gender identity or expression, age, race, creed, color, national origin, military status, disability, pre-

disposing genetic characteristics, familial status, marital status, criminal history, or status as a victim of domestic 

violence. Our different identities impact our understanding of the world and how others perceive us. For example, 

an individual’s race, ability, or immigration status may impact their experience with gender discrimination in the 

workplace. While this policy is focused on sexual harassment and gender discrimination, the methods for 

reporting and investigating discrimination based on other protected identities are the same. The purpose of this 

policy is to teach employees to recognize discrimination, including discrimination due to an individual’s 

intersecting identities, and provide the tools to take action when it occurs. All employees, managers, and 

supervisors are required to work in a manner designed to prevent sexual harassment and discrimination in the 

workplace. This policy is one component of the Agency's commitment to a discrimination-free work environment.  

 
Goals of this Policy: 
 

Sexual harassment and discrimination are against the law. After reading this policy, employees will understand 

their right to a workplace free from harassment. Employees will also learn what harassment and discrimination 

look like, what actions they can take to prevent and report harassment, and how they are protected from retaliation 

after taking action. The policy will also explain the investigation process into any claims of harassment. 

Employees are encouraged to report sexual harassment or discrimination by filing a complaint internally with the 

Agency. Employees can also file a complaint with a government agency or in court under federal, state, or local 

antidiscrimination laws. To file an employment complaint with the New York State Division of Human Rights, 

please visit https://dhr.ny.gov/complaint. To file a complaint with the United States Equal Employment 

Opportunity Commission, please visit https://www.eeoc.gov/filing-charge-discrimination.  

 

 

Sexual Harassment and Discrimination Prevention Policy: 
 

1. SCIDA’s policy applies to all employees, applicants for employment, and interns, whether paid or unpaid. 

The policy also applies to additional covered individuals. It applies to anyone who is (or is employed 

by) a contractor, subcontractor, vendor, consultant, or anyone providing services in our workplace. These 

individuals include persons commonly referred to as independent contractors, gig workers, and temporary 

workers. Also included are persons providing equipment repair, cleaning services, or any other services 

through a contract with the Agency. For the remainder of this policy, we will use the term “covered 

individual” to refer to these individuals who are not direct employees of the company. 

Sexual Harassment Policy for  
All Employers in New York State 
 

https://dhr.ny.gov/complaint
https://www.eeoc.gov/filing-charge-discrimination


 

 Page 2 of 8 
 

 

2. Sexual harassment is unacceptable. Any employee or covered individual who engages in sexual 

harassment, discrimination, or retaliation will be subject to action, including appropriate discipline for 

employees. In New York, harassment does not need to be severe or pervasive to be illegal. Employees 

and covered individuals should not feel discouraged from reporting harassment because they do not 

believe it is bad enough, or conversely because they do not want to see a colleague fired over less severe 

behavior. Just as harassment can happen in different degrees, potential discipline for engaging in sexual 

harassment will depend on the degree of harassment and might include education and counseling. It may 

lead to suspension or termination when appropriate. 

 

3. Retaliation Prohibition: Any employee or covered individual that reports an incident of sexual harassment 

or discrimination complaint is protected from retaliation.  No one should fear reporting sexual harassment 

if they believe it has occurred. So long as a person reasonably believes that they have witnessed or 

experienced such behavior, they are protected from retaliation. Any employee of the Agency who 

retaliates against anyone involved in a sexual harassment or discrimination investigation will face 

disciplinary action, up to and including termination. All employees and covered individuals working in 

the workplace who believe they have been subject to such retaliation should inform a supervisor, manager, 

or Executive Director. All employees and covered individuals who believe they have been a target of such 

retaliation may also seek relief from government agencies, as explained below in the section on Legal 

Protections. 

 

4. Discrimination of any kind, including sexual harassment, is a violation of our policies, is unlawful, and 

may subject the Agency to liability for the harm experienced by targets of discrimination. Harassers may 

also be individually subject to liability and employers or supervisors who fail to report or act on 

harassment may be liable for aiding and abetting such behavior. Employees at every level who engage in 

harassment or discrimination, including managers and supervisors who engage in harassment or 

discrimination or who allow such behavior to continue, will be penalized for such misconduct. 

 

5. SCIDA will conduct a prompt and thorough investigation that is fair for all parties. An investigation will 

happen whenever management receives a complaint about discrimination or sexual harassment, or when 

it otherwise knows of possible discrimination or sexual harassment occurring. SCIDA will keep the 

investigation confidential to the extent possible. If an investigation ends with the finding that 

discrimination or sexual harassment occurred, the Agency will act as required. In addition to any required 

discipline, the Agency will also take steps to ensure a safe work environment for the employee(s) who 

experienced the discrimination or harassment. All employees, including managers and supervisors, are 

required to cooperate with any internal investigation of discrimination or sexual harassment. 

 

6. All employees and covered individuals are encouraged to report any harassment or behaviors that violate 

this policy. All employees will have access to a complaint form to report harassment and file complaints. 

Use of this form is not required. For anyone who would rather make a complaint verbally, or by email, 

these complaints will be treated with equal priority. An employee or covered individual who prefers not 

to report harassment to their manager or employer may instead report harassment to the New York State 

Division of Human Rights and/or the United States Equal Employment Opportunity Commission. 

Complaints may be made to both the employer and a government agency. 

 

Managers and supervisors are required to report any complaint that they receive, or any harassment that 

they observe or become aware of, to the Executive Director.  

 

 



 

 Page 3 of 8 
 

 

 

7. This policy applies to all employees and covered individuals, such as contractors, subcontractors, vendors, 

consultants, or anyone providing services in the workplace, and all must follow and uphold this policy. 

This policy must be provided to all employees in person or digitally through email upon hiring and will 

be posted prominently in all work locations. For those offices operating remotely, in addition to sending 

the policy through email, it will also be available on the organization’s shared network. 

 

 

What Is Sexual Harassment 

 

Sexual harassment is a form of gender based discrimination and is unlawful under federal, state, and (where 

applicable) local law. Sexual harassment includes harassment on the basis of sex, sexual orientation, self-

identified or perceived sex, gender expression, gender identity and the status of being transgender.  Sexual 

harassment is not limited to sexual contact, touching, or expressions of a sexually suggestive nature. Sexual 

harassment includes all forms of gender discrimination including gender role stereotyping and treating employees 

differently because of their gender. 

 

Sexual harassment is unlawful when it subjects an individual to inferior terms, conditions, or privileges of 

employment. Harassment does not need to be severe or pervasive to be illegal. It can be any harassing behavior 

that rises above petty slights or trivial inconveniences. Every instance of harassment is unique to those 

experiencing it, and there is no single boundary between petty slights and harassing behavior. However, the 

Human Rights Law specifies that whether harassing conduct is considered petty or trivial is to be viewed from 

the standpoint of a reasonable victim of discrimination with the same protected characteristics. Generally, any 

behavior in which an employee or covered individual is treated worse because of their gender (perceived or 

actual), sexual orientation, or gender expression is considered a violation of the Agency's policy. The intent of 

the behavior, for example, making a joke, does not neutralize a harassment claim. Not intending to harass is not 

a defense. The impact of the behavior on a person is what counts. Sexual harassment includes any unwelcome 

conduct which is either directed at an individual because of that individual’s gender identity or expression 

(perceived or actual), or is of a sexual nature when: 

 

• The purpose or effect of this behavior unreasonably interferes with an individual’s work performance or 

creates an intimidating, hostile or offensive work environment. The impacted person does not need to be 

the intended target of the sexual harassment; 

 

• Employment depends implicitly or explicitly on accepting such unwelcome behavior; or 

 

• Decisions regarding an individual’s employment are based on an individual’s acceptance to or rejection 

of such behavior. Such decisions can include what shifts and how many hours an employee might work, 

project assignments, as well as salary and promotion decisions.  
 

There are two main types of sexual harassment:  

 

• Behaviors that contribute to a hostile work environment include, but are not limited to, words, signs, jokes, 

pranks, intimidation, or physical violence which are of a sexual nature, or which are directed at an 

individual because of that individual’s sex, gender identity, or gender expression. Sexual harassment also 

consists of any unwanted verbal or physical advances, sexually explicit derogatory, or discriminatory 

statements which an employee finds offensive or objectionable, causes an employee discomfort or 

humiliation, or interferes with the employee’s job performance. 



 

 Page 4 of 8 
 

 

 

• Sexual harassment also occurs when a person in authority tries to trade job benefits for sexual favors. This 

can include hiring, promotion, continued employment or any other terms, conditions, or privileges of 

employment. This is also called quid pro quo harassment. 

 

Any employee or covered individual who feels harassed is encouraged to report the behavior so that any violation 

of this policy can be corrected promptly. Any harassing conduct, even a single incident, can be discrimination 

and is covered by this policy. 

 

Examples of Sexual Harassment 

 

The following describes some of the types of acts that may be unlawful sexual harassment and that are strictly 

prohibited. This list is just a sample of behaviors and should not be considered exhaustive. Any employee who 

believes they have experienced sexual harassment, even if it does not appear on this list, should feel encouraged 

to report it: 

 

• Physical acts of a sexual nature, such as: 

o Touching, pinching, patting, kissing, hugging, grabbing, brushing against another employee’s 

body, or poking another employee’s body; or 

o Rape, sexual battery, molestation, or attempts to commit these assaults, which may be considered 

criminal conduct outside the scope of this policy (please contact local law enforcement if you wish 

to pursue criminal charges). 

 

• Unwanted sexual comments, advances, or propositions, such as: 

o Requests for sexual favors accompanied by implied or overt threats concerning the target’s job 

performance evaluation, a promotion, or other job benefits; 

▪ This can include sexual advances/pressure placed on a service industry employee by 

customers or clients, especially those industries where hospitality and tips are essential to 

the customer/employee relationship; 

o Subtle or obvious pressure for unwelcome sexual activities; or 

o Repeated requests for dates or romantic gestures, including gift-giving. 

 

• Sexually oriented gestures, noises, remarks or jokes, or questions and comments about a person’s 

sexuality, sexual experience, or romantic history which create a hostile work environment. This is not 

limited to interactions in person. Remarks made over virtual platforms and in messaging apps when 

employees are working remotely can create a similarly hostile work environment. 

 

• Sex stereotyping, which occurs when someone’s conduct or personality traits are judged based on other 

people's ideas or perceptions about how individuals of a particular sex should act or look: 

o Remarks regarding an employee’s gender expression, such as wearing a garment typically 

associated with a different gender identity; or 

o Asking employees to take on traditionally gendered roles, such as asking a woman to serve 

meeting refreshments when it is not part of, or appropriate to, her job duties. 

 

• Sexual or discriminatory displays or publications anywhere in the workplace, such as: 

o Displaying pictures, posters, calendars, graffiti, objects, promotional material, reading materials, 

or other materials that are sexually demeaning or pornographic. This includes such sexual displays 

on workplace computers or cell phones and sharing such displays while in the workplace;  



 

 Page 5 of 8 
 

 

o This also extends to the virtual or remote workspace and can include having such materials visible 

in the background of one’s home during a virtual meeting.  

 

• Hostile actions taken against an individual because of that individual’s sex, sexual orientation, gender 

identity, or gender expression, such as: 

o Interfering with, destroying, or damaging a person’s workstation, tools or equipment, or otherwise 

interfering with the individual’s ability to perform the job; 

o Sabotaging an individual’s work; 

o Bullying, yelling, or name-calling; 

o Intentional misuse of an individual’s preferred pronouns; or 

o Creating different expectations for individuals based on their perceived identities: 

▪ Dress codes that place more emphasis on women’s attire; 

▪ Leaving parents/caregivers out of meetings.  

 

 

Who can be a target of sexual harassment? 

 

Sexual harassment can occur between any individuals, regardless of their sex or gender.  Harassment does not 

have to be between members of the opposite sex or gender. New York Law protects employees and all covered 

individuals described earlier in the policy. Harassers can be anyone in the workplace. A supervisor, a supervisee, 

or a coworker can all be harassers. Anyone else in the workplace can also be harassers including an independent 

contractor, contract worker, vendor, client, customer, patient, constituent, or visitor. 

 

Sexual harassment does not happen in a vacuum and discrimination experienced by an employee can be impacted 

by biases and identities beyond an individual’s gender. For example: 

• Placing different demands or expectations on black women employees than white women employees can 

be both racial and gender discrimination. 

• An individual’s immigration status may lead to perceptions of vulnerability and increased concerns around 

illegal retaliation for reporting sexual harassment; or  

• Past experiences as a survivor of domestic or sexual violence may lead an individual to feel re-traumatized 

by someone’s behaviors in the workplace. 

 

Individuals bring personal history with them to the workplace that might impact how they interact with certain 

behavior. It is especially important for all employees to be aware of how words or actions might impact someone 

with a different experience than their own in the interest of creating a safe and equitable workplace. 

 

Where can sexual harassment occur? 

 

Unlawful sexual harassment is not limited to the physical workplace itself. It can occur while employees are 

traveling for business or at employer or industry sponsored events or parties. Calls, texts, emails, and social 

media usage by employees or covered individuals can constitute unlawful workplace harassment, even if they 

occur away from the workplace premises, on personal devices or during non-work hours. 

Sexual harassment can occur when employees are working remotely from home as well. Any behaviors outlined 

above that leave an employee feeling uncomfortable, humiliated, or unable to meet their job requirements 

constitute harassment even if the employee or covered individual is at home when the harassment occurs. 

Harassment can happen on virtual meeting platforms, in messaging apps, and after working hours between 

personal cell phones.  

 



 

 Page 6 of 8 
 

 

Retaliation 

 

Retaliation is unlawful and is any action by an employer or supervisor that punishes an individual upon learning 

of a harassment claim, that seeks to discourage a worker or covered individual from making a formal complaint 

or supporting a sexual harassment or discrimination claim, or that punishes those who have come forward. These 

actions need not be job-related or occur in the workplace to constitute unlawful retaliation. For example, threats 

of physical violence outside of work hours or disparaging someone on social media would be covered as 

retaliation under this policy.  

 

Examples of retaliation may include, but are not limited to: 

• Demotion, termination, denying accommodations, reduced hours, or the assignment of less desirable 

shifts; 

• Publicly releasing personnel files;  

• Refusing to provide a reference or providing an unwarranted negative reference; 

• Labeling an employee as “difficult” and excluding them from projects to avoid “drama”; 

• Undermining an individual’s immigration status; or  

• Reducing work responsibilities, passing over for a promotion, or moving an individual’s desk to a less 

desirable office location.   

 

 

Such retaliation is unlawful under federal, state, and (where applicable) local law. The New York State Human 

Rights Law protects any individual who has engaged in “protected activity.” Protected activity occurs when a 

person has: 

 

• made a complaint of sexual harassment, either internally or with any government agency;  

 

• testified or assisted in a proceeding involving sexual harassment or discrimination under the Human 

Rights Law or other anti-discrimination law;  

 

• opposed sexual harassment or discrimination by making a verbal or informal complaint to management, 

or by simply informing a supervisor or manager of suspected harassment;  

 

• reported that another employee has been sexually harassed or discriminated against; or  

 

• encouraged a fellow employee to report harassment. 

 

Even if the alleged harassment does not turn out to rise to the level of a violation of law, the individual is 

protected from retaliation if the person had a good faith belief that the practices were unlawful. However, the 

retaliation provision is not intended to protect persons making intentionally false charges of harassment. 

 

 

 

 

Reporting Sexual Harassment 

 

Everyone must work toward preventing sexual harassment, but leadership matters. Supervisors and 

managers have a special responsibility to make sure employees feel safe at work and that workplaces are 



 

 Page 7 of 8 
 

 

free from harassment and discrimination. Any employee or covered individual is encouraged to report 

harassing or discriminatory behavior to a supervisor, manager or the Executive Director. Anyone who witnesses 

or becomes aware of potential instances of sexual harassment should report such behavior to a supervisor, 

manager, or the Executive Director.  

 

Reports of sexual harassment may be made verbally or in writing. A written complaint form is attached to this 

policy if an employee would like to use it, but the complaint form is not required. Employees who are reporting 

sexual harassment on behalf of other employees may use the complaint form and should note that it is on another 

employee’s behalf. A verbal or otherwise written complaint (such as an email) on behalf of oneself or another 

employee is also acceptable. 

 

Employees and covered individuals who believe they have been a target of sexual harassment may at any time 

seek assistance in additional available forums, as explained below in the section on Legal Protections 

 

Supervisory Responsibilities 

 

Supervisors and managers have a responsibility to prevent sexual harassment and discrimination. All supervisors 

and managers who receive a complaint or information about suspected sexual harassment, observe what may be 

sexually harassing or discriminatory behavior, or for any reason suspect that sexual harassment or discrimination 

is occurring, are required to report such suspected sexual harassment to the Executive Director. Managers and 

supervisors should not be passive and wait for an employee to make a claim of harassment. If they observe such 

behavior, they must act.  

 

Supervisors and managers can be disciplined if they engage in sexually harassing or discriminatory behavior 

themselves. Supervisors and managers can also be disciplined for failing to report suspected sexual harassment 

or allowing sexual harassment to continue after they know about it.  

 

Supervisors and managers will also be subject to discipline for engaging in any retaliation. 

 

Bystander Intervention 

 

Any employee witnessing harassment as a bystander is encouraged to report it. A supervisor or manager that is a 

bystander to harassment is required to report it. There are five standard methods of bystander intervention that 

can be used when anyone witnesses harassment or discrimination and wants to help.  

 

1. A bystander can interrupt the harassment by engaging with the individual being harassed and distracting 

them from the harassing behavior; 

2. A bystander who feels unsafe interrupting on their own can ask a third party to help intervene in the 

harassment; 

3. A bystander can record or take notes on the harassment incident to benefit a future investigation; 

4. A bystander might check in with the person who has been harassed after the incident, see how they are 

feeling and let them know the behavior was not ok; and 

5. If a bystander feels safe, they can confront the harassers and name the behavior as inappropriate. When 

confronting harassment, physically assaulting an individual is never an appropriate response. 

 

Though not exhaustive, and dependent on the circumstances, the guidelines above can serve as a brief guide of 

how to react when witnessing harassment in the workplace. Any employee witnessing harassment as a bystander 

is encouraged to report it. A supervisor or manager that is a bystander to harassment is required to report it. 



 

 Page 8 of 8 
 

 

 

 

Complaints and Investigations of Sexual Harassment 

An investigation of any complaint, information, or knowledge of suspected sexual harassment will be prompt, 

thorough, and started and completed as soon as possible. The investigation will be kept confidential to the extent 

possible. All individuals involved, including those making a harassment claim, witnesses, and alleged harassers 

deserve a fair and impartial investigation.  

 

Any employee may be required to cooperate as needed in an investigation of suspected sexual harassment. The 

Agency will take disciplinary action against anyone engaging in retaliation against employees who file 

complaints, support another’s complaint, or participate in harassment investigations. 

 

The Agency recognizes that participating in a harassment investigation can be uncomfortable and has the potential 

to retraumatize an employee. Those receiving claims and leading investigations will handle complaints and 

questions with sensitivity toward those participating.   

 

While the process may vary from case to case, investigations will be done in accordance with the following steps. 

Upon receipt of a complaint, the Executive Director: 

 

1. Will conduct a prompt review of the allegations, assess the appropriate scope of the investigation, and 

take any interim actions (for example, instructing the individual(s) about whom the complaint was made 

to refrain from communications with the individual(s) who reported the harassment), as appropriate. If 

complaint is verbal, request that the individual completes the complaint form in writing. If the person 

reporting prefers not to fill out the form, the Executive Director will prepare a complaint form or 

equivalent documentation based on the verbal reporting; 

 

2. Will take steps to obtain, review, and preserve documents sufficient to assess the allegations, including 

documents, emails or phone records that may be relevant to the investigation. The Executive Director will 

consider and implement appropriate document request, review, and preservation measures, including for 

electronic communications; 

 

3. Will seek to interview all parties involved, including any relevant witnesses; 

 

4. Will create a written documentation of the investigation (such as a letter, memo or email), which contains 

the following: 

a. A list of all documents reviewed, along with a detailed summary of relevant documents; 

b. A list of names of those interviewed, along with a detailed summary of their statements; 

c. A timeline of events; 

d. A summary of any prior relevant incidents disclosed in the investigation, reported or unreported; 

and 

e. The basis for the decision and final resolution of the complaint, together with any corrective 

action(s). 

 

5. Will keep the written documentation and associated documents in a secure and confidential location; 

 

6. Will promptly notify the individual(s) who reported the harassment and the individual(s) about whom the 

complaint was made that the investigation has been completed and implement any corrective actions 

identified in the written document; and 



 

 Page 9 of 8 
 

 

 

7. Will inform the individual(s) who reported of the right to file a complaint or charge externally as outlined 

in the next section. 

 

 

Legal Protections And External Remedies 

 

Sexual harassment is not only prohibited by the Agency, but it is also prohibited by state, federal, and, where 

applicable, local law. 

  

The internal process outlined in the policy above is one way for employees to report sexual harassment. 

Employees and covered individuals may also choose to pursue legal remedies with the following governmental 

entities. While a private attorney is not required to file a complaint with a governmental agency, you may also 

seek the legal advice of an attorney.  

 

New York State Division of Human Rights:  

 

The New York State Human Rights Law (HRL), N.Y. Executive Law, art. 15, § 290 et seq., applies to all 

employers in New York State and protects employees and covered individuals, regardless of immigration status. 

A complaint alleging violation of the Human Rights Law may be filed either with the New York State Division 

of Human Rights (DHR) or in New York State Supreme Court. 

 

Complaints of sexual harassment filed with DHR may be submitted any time within three years of the harassment. 

If an individual does not file a complaint with DHR, they can bring a lawsuit directly in state court under the 

Human Rights Law, within three years of the alleged sexual harassment. An individual may not file with DHR if 

they have already filed a HRL complaint in state court. 

 

Complaining internally to the Agency does not extend your time to file with DHR or in court. The three years are 

counted from the date of the most recent incident of harassment. 

 

You do not need an attorney to file a complaint with DHR, and there is no cost to file with DHR. 

 

DHR will investigate your complaint and determine whether there is probable cause to believe that sexual 

harassment has occurred. Probable cause cases receive a public hearing before an administrative law judge. If 

sexual harassment is found at the hearing, DHR has the power to award relief. Relief varies but it may include 

requiring your employer to take action to stop the harassment, or repair the damage caused by the harassment, 

including paying of monetary damages, punitive damages, attorney’s fees, and civil fines. 

 

DHR’s main office contact information is: NYS Division of Human Rights, One Fordham Plaza, Fourth Floor, 

Bronx, New York 10458. You may call (718) 741-8400 or visit: www.dhr.ny.gov. 

 

Go to dhr.ny.gov/complaint for more information about filing a complaint with DHR. The website has a digital 

complaint process that can be completed on your computer or mobile device from start to finish. The website has 

a complaint form that can be downloaded, filled out, and mailed to DHR as well as a form that can be submitted 

online. The website also contains contact information for DHR’s regional offices across New York State.  

 

http://www.dhr.ny.gov/
https://dhr.ny.gov/complaint


 

 Page 10 of 8 
 

 

Call the DHR sexual harassment hotline at 1(800) HARASS3 for more information about filing a sexual 

harassment complaint.  This hotline can also provide you with a referral to a volunteer attorney experienced in 

sexual harassment matters who can provide you with limited free assistance and counsel over the phone. 

 

The United States Equal Employment Opportunity Commission:  

 

The United States Equal Employment Opportunity Commission (EEOC) enforces federal anti-discrimination 

laws, including Title VII of the 1964 federal Civil Rights Act, 42 U.S.C. § 2000e et seq. An individual can file a 

complaint with the EEOC anytime within 300 days from the most recent incident of harassment. There is no cost 

to file a complaint with the EEOC. The EEOC will investigate the complaint and determine whether there is 

reasonable cause to believe that discrimination has occurred. If the EEOC determines that the law may have been 

violated, the EEOC will try to reach a voluntary settlement with the employer. If the EEOC cannot reach a 

settlement, the EEOC (or the Department of Justice in certain cases) will decide whether to file a lawsuit. The 

EEOC will issue a Notice of Right to Sue permitting workers to file a lawsuit in federal court if the EEOC closes 

the charge, is unable to determine if federal employment discrimination laws may have been violated, or believes 

that unlawful discrimination occurred by does not file a lawsuit. 

 

Individuals may obtain relief in mediation, settlement or conciliation. In addition, federal courts may award 

remedies if discrimination is found to have occurred. In general, private employers must have at least 15 

employees to come within the jurisdiction of the EEOC. 

 

An employee alleging discrimination at work can file a “Charge of Discrimination.” The EEOC has district, area, 

and field offices where complaints can be filed. Contact the EEOC by calling 1-800-669-4000 (TTY: 1-800-669-

6820), visiting their website at www.eeoc.gov or via email at info@eeoc.gov. 

 

If an individual filed an administrative complaint with the New York State Division of Human Rights, DHR will 

automatically file the complaint with the EEOC to preserve the right to proceed in federal court. 

 

Local Protections  

 

Many localities enforce laws protecting individuals from sexual harassment and discrimination. An individual 

should contact the county, city or town in which they live to find out if such a law exists. For example, employees 

who work in New York City may file complaints of sexual harassment or discrimination with the New York City 

Commission on Human Rights. Contact their main office at Law Enforcement Bureau of the NYC Commission 

on Human Rights, 22 Reade Street, 1st Floor, New York, New York; call 311 or (212) 306-7450; or visit 

www.nyc.gov/html/cchr/html/home/home.shtml. 

 

Contact the Local Police Department 

 

If the harassment involves unwanted physical touching, coerced physical confinement, or coerced sex acts, the 

conduct may constitute a crime. Those wishing to pursue criminal charges are encouraged to contact their local 

police department. 
 

 
 
 
 

http://www.eeoc.gov/
mailto:info@eeoc.gov
http://www.nyc.gov/html/cchr/html/home/home.shtml


 

 Page 11 of 8 
 

 

Conclusion 

 

The policy outlined above is aimed at providing employees at the Agency and covered individuals an 

understanding of their right to a discrimination and harassment free workplace. All employees should feel safe at 

work. Though the focus of this policy is on sexual harassment and gender discrimination, the New York State 

Human Rights law protects against discrimination in several protected classes including sex, sexual orientation, 

gender identity or expression, age, race, creed, color, national origin, military status, disability, pre-disposing 

genetic characteristics, familial status, marital status, criminal history, or domestic violence survivor status. The 

prevention policies outlined above should be considered applicable to all protected classes.  

 

       

 



Adoption of this policy does not constitute a conclusive defense to charges of unlawful sexual harassment. Each claim of sexual harassment will be 

determined in accordance with existing legal standards, with due consideration of the particular facts and circumstances of the claim, including but not 

limited to the existence of an effective anti-harassment policy and procedure. 

 
 

 
Introduction 

 

The Steuben County Industrial Development Agency (“SCIDA”) is committed to maintaining a workplace free 

from sexual harassment. Sexual harassment is a form of workplace discrimination. All employees are required 

to work in a manner that prevents sexual harassment in the workplace. This Policy is one component of 

SCIDA’s commitment to a discrimination-free work environment. Sexual harassment is against the law1 and all 

employees have a legal right to a workplace free from sexual harassment and employees are urged to report 

sexual harassment by filing a complaint internally with SCIDA. Employees can also file a complaint with a 

government agency or in court under federal, state or local antidiscrimination laws. 

 

 

Policy: 

 

1. SCIDA’s policy applies to all employees, applicants for employment, interns, whether paid or unpaid, 

contractors and persons conducting business, regardless of immigration status, with SCIDA. In the 

remainder of this document, the term “employees” refers to this collective group. 

 

2. Sexual harassment will not be tolerated. Any employee or individual covered by this policy who 

engages in sexual harassment or retaliation will be subject to remedial and/or disciplinary action (e.g., 

counseling, suspension, termination). 

 

3. Retaliation Prohibition: No person covered by this Policy shall be subject to adverse action because the 

employee reports an incident of sexual harassment, provides information, or otherwise assists in any 

investigation of a sexual harassment complaint. SCIDA will not tolerate such retaliation against anyone 

who, in good faith, reports or provides information about suspected sexual harassment. Any employee of 

SCIDA who retaliates against anyone involved in a sexual harassment investigation will be subjected to 

disciplinary action, up to and including termination. All employees, paid or unpaid interns, or non-

employees2 working in the workplace who believe they have been subject to such retaliation should 

inform a supervisor, manager, or the Executive Director. All employees, paid or unpaid interns or non-

employees who believe they have been a target of such retaliation may also seek relief in other available 

forums, as explained below in the section on Legal Protections. 

 

 

4. Sexual harassment is offensive, is a violation of our policies, is unlawful, and may subject SCIDA to 

liability for harm to targets of sexual harassment. Harassers may also be individually subject to liability. 

Employees of every level who engage in sexual harassment, including managers and supervisors who 

 
1 While this policy specifically addresses sexual harassment, harassment because of and discrimination against persons of all protected classes is 
prohibited. In New York State, such classes includeage, race, creed, color, national origin, sexual orientation, military status, sex, disability, marital 
status, domestic violence victim status, gender identity and criminal history. 
2 A non-employee is someone who is (or is employed by) a contractor, subcontractor, vendor, consultant, or anyone providing services in the workplace. 
Protected non-employees include persons commonly referred to as independent contractors, “gig” workers and temporary workers. Also included are 
persons providing equipment repair, cleaning services or any other services provided pursuant to a contract with the employer. 

Sexual Harassment Policy for  
All Employers in New York State 
 



 

 Page 2 of 8 
 

 

engage in sexual harassment or who allow such behavior to continue, will be penalized for such 

misconduct. 

 

5. SCIDA will conduct a prompt and thorough investigation that ensures due process for all parties, 

whenever management receives a complaint about sexual harassment, or otherwise knows of possible 

sexual harassment occurring. SCIDA will keep the investigation confidential to the extent possible. 

Effective corrective action will be taken whenever sexual harassment is found to have occurred. All 

employees, including managers and supervisors, are required to cooperate with any internal 

investigation of sexual harassment. 

 

6. All employees are encouraged to report any harassment or behaviors that violate this policy. SCIDA will 

provide all employees a complaint form for employees to report harassment and file complaints. 

 

7. Managers and supervisors are required to report any complaint that they receive, or any harassment that 

they observe or become aware of, to the Executive Director. 

 

8. This policy applies to all employees, paid or unpaid interns, and non-employees and all must follow and 

uphold this policy. This policy must be provided to all employees and should be posted prominently in 

all work locations to the extent practicable (for example, in a main office, not an offsite work location) 

and be provided to employees upon hiring. 

 

 

What Is “Sexual Harassment”? 

 

Sexual harassment is a form of sex discrimination and is unlawful under federal, state, and (where applicable) 

local law. Sexual harassment includes harassment on the basis of sex, sexual orientation, self-identified or 

perceived sex, gender expression, gender identity and the status of being transgender. 

 

Sexual harassment includes unwelcome conduct which is either of a sexual nature, or which is directed at an 

individual because of that individual’s sex when: 

 

• Such conduct has the purpose or effect of unreasonably interfering with an individual’s work 

performance or creating an intimidating, hostile or offensive work environment, even if the reporting 

individual is not the intended target of the sexual harassment; 

 

• Such conduct is made either explicitly or implicitly a term or condition of employment; or 

 

• Submission to or rejection of such conduct is used as the basis for employment decisions affecting an 

individual’s employment. 

 

A sexually harassing hostile work environment includes, but is not limited to, words, signs, jokes, pranks, 

intimidation or physical violence which are of a sexual nature, or which are directed at an individual because of 

that individual’s sex. Sexual harassment also consists of any unwanted verbal or physical advances, sexually 

explicit derogatory statements or sexually discriminatory remarks made by someone which are offensive or 

objectionable to the recipient, which cause the recipient discomfort or humiliation, which interfere with the 

recipient’s job performance. 

 



 

 Page 3 of 8 
 

 

Sexual harassment also occurs when a person in authority tries to trade job benefits for sexual favors. This can 

include hiring, promotion, continued employment or any other terms, conditions or privileges of employment. 

This is also called “quid pro quo” harassment. 

 

Any employee who feels harassed should report so that any violation of this policy can be corrected promptly. 

Any harassing conduct, even a single incident, can be addressed under this policy. 

 

 

Examples of sexual harassment 

 

The following describes some of the types of acts that may be unlawful sexual harassment and that are strictly 

prohibited: 

 

• Physical acts of a sexual nature, such as: 

o Touching, pinching, patting, kissing, hugging, grabbing, brushing against another employee’s 

body or poking another employee’s body; 

o Rape, sexual battery, molestation or attempts to commit these assaults. 

 

• Unwanted sexual advances or propositions, such as: 

o Requests for sexual favors accompanied by implied or overt threats concerning the target’s job 

performance evaluation, a promotion or other job benefits or detriments; 

o Subtle or obvious pressure for unwelcome sexual activities. 

 

• Sexually oriented gestures, noises, remarks or jokes, or comments about a person’s sexuality or sexual 

experience, which create a hostile work environment. 

 

• Sex stereotyping occurs when conduct or personality traits are considered inappropriate simply because 

they may not conform to other people's ideas or perceptions about how individuals of a particular sex 

should act or look. 

 

• Sexual or discriminatory displays or publications anywhere in the workplace, such as: 

o Displaying pictures, posters, calendars, graffiti, objects, promotional material, reading materials 

or other materials that are sexually demeaning or pornographic. This includes such sexual 

displays on workplace computers or cell phones and sharing such displays while in the 

workplace. 

 

• Hostile actions taken against an individual because of that individual’s sex, sexual orientation, gender 

identity and the status of being transgender, such as: 

o Interfering with, destroying or damaging a person’s workstation, tools or equipment, or 

otherwise interfering with the individual’s ability to perform the job; 

o Sabotaging an individual’s work; 

o Bullying, yelling, name-calling. 

Who can be a target of sexual harassment? 

 

Sexual harassment can occur between any individuals, regardless of their sex or gender. New York Law 

protects employees, paid or unpaid interns, and non-employees, including independent contractors, and those 

employed by companies contracting to provide services in the workplace. Harassers can be a superior, a 



 

 Page 4 of 8 
 

 

subordinate, a coworker or anyone in the workplace including an independent contractor, contract worker, 

vendor, client, customer or visitor. 

 

Where can sexual harassment occur? 

 

Unlawful sexual harassment is not limited to the physical workplace itself. It can occur while employees are 

traveling for business or at employer sponsored events or parties. Calls, texts, emails, and social media usage by 

employees can constitute unlawful workplace harassment, even if they occur away from the workplace 

premises, on personal devices or during non-work hours. 

 

 

Retaliation 

 

Unlawful retaliation can be any action that could discourage a worker from coming forward to make or support 

a sexual harassment claim. Adverse action need not be job-related or occur in the workplace to constitute 

unlawful retaliation (e.g., threats of physical violence outside of work hours).  

 

Such retaliation is unlawful under federal, state, and (where applicable) local law. The New York State Human 

Rights Law protects any individual who has engaged in “protected activity.” Protected activity occurs when a 

person has: 

 

• made a complaint of sexual harassment, either internally or with any anti-discrimination agency;  

 

• testified or assisted in a proceeding involving sexual harassment under the Human Rights Law or other 

anti-discrimination law;  

 

• opposed sexual harassment by making a verbal or informal complaint to management, or by simply 

informing a supervisor or manager of harassment;  

 

• reported that another employee has been sexually harassed; or  

 

• encouraged a fellow employee to report harassment. 

 

Even if the alleged harassment does not turn out to rise to the level of a violation of law, the individual is 

protected from retaliation if the person had a good faith belief that the practices were unlawful. However, the 

retaliation provision is not intended to protect persons making intentionally false charges of harassment. 

 

 

 

 

Reporting Sexual Harassment 

 

Preventing sexual harassment is everyone’s responsibility. The SCIDA cannot prevent or remedy sexual 

harassment unless it knows about it. Any employee, paid or unpaid intern or non-employee who has been 

subjected to behavior that may constitute sexual harassment is encouraged to report such behavior to a 

supervisor, manager or the Executive Director. Anyone who witnesses or becomes aware of potential instances 

of sexual harassment should report such behavior to a supervisor, manager or the Executive Director.  

 



 

 Page 5 of 8 
 

 

Reports of sexual harassment may be made verbally or in writing. A form for submission of a written complaint 

is attached to this Policy, and all employees are encouraged to use this complaint form. Employees who are 

reporting sexual harassment on behalf of other employees should use the complaint form and note that it is on 

another employee’s behalf. 

 

Employees, paid or unpaid interns or non-employees who believe they have been a target of sexual harassment 

may also seek assistance in other available forums, as explained below in the section on Legal Protections. 

 

 

Supervisory Responsibilities 

 

All supervisors and managers who receive a complaint or information about suspected sexual harassment, 

observe what may be sexually harassing behavior or for any reason suspect that sexual harassment is occurring, 

are required to report such suspected sexual harassment to the Executive Director.  

 

In addition to being subject to discipline if they engaged in sexually harassing conduct themselves, supervisors 

and managers will be subject to discipline for failing to report suspected sexual harassment or otherwise 

knowingly allowing sexual harassment to continue.  

 

Supervisors and managers will also be subject to discipline for engaging in any retaliation. 

 

 

Complaint and Investigation of Sexual Harassment 

 

All complaints or information about sexual harassment will be investigated, whether that information was 

reported in verbal or written form. Investigations will be conducted in a timely manner, and will be confidential 

to the extent possible. 

 

An investigation of any complaint, information or knowledge of suspected sexual harassment will be prompt 

and thorough, commenced immediately and completed as soon as possible. The investigation will be kept 

confidential to the extent possible. All persons involved, including complainants, witnesses and alleged 

harassers will be accorded due process, as outlined below, to protect their rights to a fair and impartial 

investigation.  

 

Any employee may be required to cooperate as needed in an investigation of suspected sexual harassment. The 

SCIDA will not tolerate retaliation against employees who file complaints, support another’s complaint or 

participate in an investigation regarding a violation of this policy. 

 

While the process may vary from case to case, investigations should be done in accordance with the following 

steps: 

• Upon receipt of complaint, the Executive Director will conduct an immediate review of the allegations, 

and take any interim actions (e.g., instructing the respondent to refrain from communications with the 

complainant), as appropriate. If complaint is verbal, encourage the individual to complete the 

“Complaint Form” in writing. If he or she refuses, prepare a Complaint Form based on the verbal 

reporting. 

 

• If documents, emails or phone records are relevant to the investigation, take steps to obtain and preserve 

them.  



 

 Page 6 of 8 
 

 

 

• Request and review all relevant documents, including all electronic communications. 

 

• Interview all parties involved, including any relevant witnesses;  

 

• Create a written documentation of the investigation (such as a letter, memo or email), which contains the 

following: 

o A list of all documents reviewed, along with a detailed summary of relevant documents; 

o A list of names of those interviewed, along with a detailed summary of their statements; 

o A timeline of events; 

o A summary of prior relevant incidents, reported or unreported; and 

o The basis for the decision and final resolution of the complaint, together with any corrective 

action(s). 

 

• Keep the written documentation and associated documents in a secure and confidential location. 

 

• Promptly notify the individual who reported and the individual(s) about whom the complaint was made 

of the final determination and implement any corrective actions identified in the written document. 

 

• Inform the individual who reported of the right to file a complaint or charge externally as outlined in the 

next section. 

 

 

 

Legal Protections And External Remedies 

 

Sexual harassment is not only prohibited by the SCIDA but is also prohibited by state, federal, and, where 

applicable, local law. 

  

Aside from the internal process at the SCIDA, employees may also choose to pursue legal remedies with the 

following governmental entities. While a private attorney is not required to file a complaint with a 

governmental agency, you may seek the legal advice of an attorney. 

 

In addition to those outlined below, employees in certain industries may have additional legal protections.  

 

 

State Human Rights Law (HRL) 

 

The Human Rights Law (HRL), codified as N.Y. Executive Law, art. 15, § 290 et seq., applies to all employers 

in New York State with regard to sexual harassment, and protects employees, paid or unpaid interns and non-

employees, regardless of immigration status. A complaint alleging violation of the Human Rights Law may be 

filed either with the Division of Human Rights (DHR) or in New York State Supreme Court. 

 

Complaints with DHR may be filed any time within one year of the harassment. If an individual did not file at 

DHR, they can sue directly in state court under the HRL, within three years of the alleged sexual harassment. 

An individual may not file with DHR if they have already filed a HRL complaint in state court. 

 



 

 Page 7 of 8 
 

 

Complaining internally to the SCIDA does not extend your time to file with DHR or in court. The one year or 

three years is counted from date of the most recent incident of harassment. 

 

You do not need an attorney to file a complaint with DHR, and there is no cost to file with DHR. 

 

DHR will investigate your complaint and determine whether there is probable cause to believe that sexual 

harassment has occurred. Probable cause cases are forwarded to a public hearing before an administrative law 

judge. If sexual harassment is found after a hearing, DHR has the power to award relief, which varies but may 

include requiring your employer to take action to stop the harassment, or redress the damage caused, including 

paying of monetary damages, attorney’s fees and civil fines. 

 

DHR’s main office contact information is: NYS Division of Human Rights, One Fordham Plaza, Fourth Floor, 

Bronx, New York 10458. You may call (718) 741-8400 or visit: www.dhr.ny.gov. 

 

Contact DHR at (888) 392-3644 or visit dhr.ny.gov/complaint for more information about filing a complaint. 

The website has a complaint form that can be downloaded, filled out, notarized and mailed to DHR. The 

website also contains contact information for DHR’s regional offices across New York State.  

 

 

Civil Rights Act of 1964 

 

The United States Equal Employment Opportunity Commission (EEOC) enforces federal anti-discrimination 

laws, including Title VII of the 1964 federal Civil Rights Act (codified as 42 U.S.C. § 2000e et seq.). An 

individual can file a complaint with the EEOC anytime within 300 days from the harassment. There is no cost to 

file a complaint with the EEOC. The EEOC will investigate the complaint, and determine whether there is 

reasonable cause to believe that discrimination has occurred, at which point the EEOC will issue a Right to Sue 

letter permitting the individual to file a complaint in federal court.  

 

The EEOC does not hold hearings or award relief, but may take other action including pursuing cases in federal 

court on behalf of complaining parties. Federal courts may award remedies if discrimination is found to have 

occurred. In general, private employers must have at least 15 employees to come within the jurisdiction of the 

EEOC. 

 

An employee alleging discrimination at work can file a “Charge of Discrimination.” The EEOC has district, 

area, and field offices where complaints can be filed. Contact the EEOC by calling 1-800-669-4000 (TTY: 1-

800-669-6820), visiting their website at www.eeoc.gov or via email at info@eeoc.gov. 

 

If an individual filed an administrative complaint with DHR, DHR will file the complaint with the EEOC to 

preserve the right to proceed in federal court. 

 

 

Local Protections 

 

Many localities enforce laws protecting individuals from sexual harassment and discrimination. An individual 

should contact the county, city or town in which they live to find out if such a law exists. For example, 

employees who work in New York City may file complaints of sexual harassment with the New York City 

Commission on Human Rights. Contact their main office at Law Enforcement Bureau of the NYC Commission 

http://www.dhr.ny.gov/
https://dhr.ny.gov/complaint
http://www.eeoc.gov/
mailto:info@eeoc.gov


 

 Page 8 of 8 
 

 

on Human Rights, 40 Rector Street, 10th Floor, New York, New York; call 311 or (212) 306-7450; or visit 

www.nyc.gov/html/cchr/html/home/home.shtml. 

 

 

Contact the Local Police Department 

 

If the harassment involves unwanted physical touching, coerced physical confinement or coerced sex acts, the 

conduct may constitute a crime. Contact the local police department. 

 

      Approved and Adopted this 23rd day of February, 2023. 

 

http://www.nyc.gov/html/cchr/html/home/home.shtml


                                         
 

 

10101 Fondren Road, Suite 545 ■ Houston, Texas 77096 
713.936.2906 ■ avi@fourpointspropertymanagement.com 

 
 

 

 

 

May 1, 2023 

 

 

 

RE: Pulteney Plaza Steuben County IDA Requirements 

 

 

 

Mr. Jamie Johnson 

Steuben County IDA 

7234 Route 54 North 

Bath, NY 14810 

 

 

 

Dear Mr. Johnson, 

 

 

I hope this letter finds you well. I represent Sky Corning, LLC, which is the owner of the property 

known as Pulteney Plaza located in Corning, NY. The property is currently benefiting from an 

agreement with the IDA which provides certain tax benefits to the property in return for bringing jobs 

to the community.  

As we have been discussing, this initial agreement (which predated our ownership) anticipated there 

would be approximately 80 jobs at the plaza. Most of this projection was due to the Tops original plan 

of being a 24-hour grocery store which did not materialize. At the current moment, it is very hard for 

me to ever predict we will reach the 80-employee threshold as mandated in the agreement. We are 

currently at the 45-employee level at the Tops and probably another 10-20 throughout the other 

businesses at the plaza and have been at this number for several years. 

The tax benefits provided by the IDA are of high value to the shopping center and its tenants as it 

lightens the burden on all the businesses. The lease structure in place, which is common in many 

commercial leases, puts the pro rata share of the tax burden on the tenant, and this helps lighten their 

load and continue to thrive. As such, I would like to request from the IDA that we amend the job 

commitment to be 40. That is a minimum number I am confident we will be at for the future, and with 

the continued benefit, the tenants will continue to do well and be successful.  

 



                                         
 

 

10101 Fondren Road, Suite 545 ■ Houston, Texas 77096 
713.936.2906 ■ avi@fourpointspropertymanagement.com 

 
 

I appreciate your consideration of my request. For further discussion, I can be reached via email at 

avi@fourpointspropertymanagement.com or via phone at 713-936-2906. I look forward to hearing from 

you.  

 

 

 

Sincerely,  

 

 
 

Avi Metchik 

Manager of Sky Corning, LLC 

 

mailto:avi@fourpointspropertymanagement.com










Project Summary Sheet 
TJA-NY-Cohocton Solar Farm, LLC 
January 2023 – revised June 2023 
 
 
Project Description 
TJA-NY-Cohocton Solar Farm is the LLC formed under Dimension Renewable Energy to construct and operate a 5 MW 
solar project at 11190 NY 391 in the Town of Cohocton. Approximately 36 acres will be used for this project. Dimension 
is building several solar projects in upstate New York and has several built across the country. Electricity will be sold 
under the community solar model, whereby local residents who live in NYSEG’s territory will be given the option to 
purchase it to save on their electricity bills. 
 
The company will be applying for sales and property tax exemptions. 
 
 
Total Project Investment   $9,689,667 
 
Jobs Retained     0 
Job Created  0  

Short-term job potential: construction jobs  
Long-term job potential: various professions will be hired on a part-time, 
contract basis as needed during the life of the project, such as electrical workers  

 
Benefit to Cost Ratio 3:1 (assumes a full assessment value based on the state’s appraisal model which 

has been challenged in court) 
Estimated PILOT Savings  $170,525 
Estimated Mortgage Tax Savings $0 
Estimated Sales Tax Savings  $387,641 
Total Savings    $558,166 
Comments The project will generate $668,178 in additional property tax revenue over 20 

years for the taxing jurisdictions based on the PILOT schedule. 
 
Estimated Project Start Date  Summer 2023 
Estimated Project Completion Date Spring 2024 
 
 
Evaluative Criteria for Energy Projects 
 
1. Private Sector Investment – The project will result in $9.7 million private sector investment, create construction 

jobs, and induce local spending for lodging, restaurants and gas stations during the construction period. 
2. Advances State Renewable Energy Production Goals – This project will assist in meeting the state’s climate action 

goals to generate 70% of electricity from renewable sources by 2030 and by reducing greenhouse gases 85% by 
2050. 



TJA-NY-Cohocton Solar Farm
Steuben County IDA PILOT Assessment
11190 State Route 371

Distribution Rate 

Cohocton Tax Rate/$1,000 $7.09 18.25%

County Tax Rate/$1,000 $10.44 26.88%

School District Tax Rate/$1,000 $21.31 54.87%

Total Tax Rate/$1000 $38.84

Per MW PILOT Rate $5,500.00 plus 2% annually 

Rated Megawatts 5

Total PILOT payment over 20 years $693,191

Abatement Year

Taxes on 

36.408 acres of 

land

Total PILOT 

Payment

Town Payment w/ 

PILOT and 36.408 

acres

County Payment 

w/ PILOT and 

36.408 acres

School Payment w/ 

PILOT and 36.408 

acres

Total Taxes w/ PILOT 

and 36.408 acres

Year 1 $1,029 $27,500 $5,208 $7,669 $15,653 $28,529

Year 2 $1,050 $28,050 $5,312 $7,822 $15,966 $29,100

Year 3 $1,071 $28,611 $5,418 $7,978 $16,285 $29,682

Year 4 $1,092 $29,183 $5,527 $8,138 $16,611 $30,276

Year 5 $1,114 $29,767 $5,637 $8,301 $16,943 $30,881

Year 6 $1,137 $30,362 $5,750 $8,467 $17,282 $31,499

Year 7 $1,159 $30,969 $5,865 $8,636 $17,628 $32,129

Year 8 $1,183 $31,589 $5,982 $8,809 $17,980 $32,771

Year 9 $1,206 $32,221 $6,102 $8,985 $18,340 $33,427

Year 10 $1,230 $32,865 $6,224 $9,165 $18,707 $34,095

Year 11 $1,255 $33,522 $6,348 $9,348 $19,081 $34,777

Year 12 $1,280 $34,193 $6,475 $9,535 $19,463 $35,473

Year 13 $1,306 $34,877 $6,605 $9,726 $19,852 $36,182

Year 14 $1,332 $35,574 $6,737 $9,920 $20,249 $36,906

Year 15 $1,358 $36,286 $6,872 $10,119 $20,654 $37,644

Year 16 $1,386 $37,011 $7,009 $10,321 $21,067 $38,397

Year 17 $1,413 $37,752 $7,149 $10,527 $21,488 $39,165

Year 18 $1,441 $38,507 $7,292 $10,738 $21,918 $39,948

Year 19 $1,470 $39,277 $7,438 $10,953 $22,356 $40,747

Year 20 $1,500 $40,062 $7,587 $11,172 $22,803 $41,562

$25,013 $668,178 $126,538 $186,326 $380,327 $693,191



Steuben County Industrial Development Agency
MRB Cost Benefit Calculator Cost-Benefit Analysis Tool powered by MRB Group

Date
Project Title
Project Location

Summary of Economic Impacts over the Life of the PILOT
Project Total Investment
$9,689,667 Temporary (Construction)

Direct Indirect Total
Jobs 14 4 17

Earnings $808,885 $178,554 $987,439
Local Spend $1,937,933 $566,158 $2,504,092

Ongoing (Operations)
Aggregate over life of the PILOT

Direct Indirect Total
Jobs 0 0 0

Earnings $0 $0 $0

             Figure 1

          Net Benefits chart will always display construction through year 10, irrespective of the length of the PILOT.

Figure 2

© Copyright 2021 MRB Engineering, Architecture and Surveying, D.P.C. Ongoing earnings are all earnings over the life of the PILOT.

January 1, 2023
TJA-NY-Cohocton Solar Farm
Cohocton,NY

Figure 3

Economic Impacts

0 5 10 15 20

Ongoing

Temporary

Total Jobs

Direct Indirect
$0 $200,000 $400,000 $600,000 $800,000 $1,000,000 $1,200,000

Ongoing

Temporary

Total Earnings

Direct Indirect

-$600,000
-$400,000
-$200,000

$0
$200,000
$400,000
$600,000
$800,000

$1,000,000
$1,200,000

Net Benefits

Benefits Costs Net Benefits



Cost-Benefit Analysis Tool powered by MRB Group

Estimated Costs of Exemptions
Nominal Value Discounted Value*

Property Tax Exemption $170,525 $131,283
Sales Tax Exemption $387,641 $387,641

Local Sales Tax Exemption $193,821 $193,821
State Sales Tax Exemption $193,821 $193,821

Mortgage Recording Tax Exemption $0 $0
Local Mortgage Recording Tax Exemption $0 $0
State Mortgage Recording Tax Exemption $0 $0

Total Costs $558,166 $518,924

State and Local Benefits

Nominal Value Discounted Value*
Local Benefits
To Private Individuals

Temporary Payroll
Ongoing Payroll
Other Payments to Private Individuals

To the Public
Increase in Property Tax Revenue
Temporary Jobs - Sales Tax Revenue
Ongoing Jobs - Sales Tax Revenue
Other Local Municipal Revenue

State Benefits
To the Public

Temporary Income Tax Revenue
Ongoing Income Tax Revenue
Temporary Jobs - Sales Tax Revenue
Ongoing Jobs - Sales Tax Revenue

Total Benefits to State & Region

Benefit to Cost Ratio 
Ratio

Local 5:1
State :1

Grand Total 3:1
*Discounted at 2% 

             Does the IDA believe that the project can be accomplished in a timely fashion? Yes

© Copyright 2021 MRB Engineering, Architecture and Surveying, D.P.C.

$0 $0

$121,487 $98,039

$796,577 $644,167
$668,178 $539,216

$6,912 $6,912
$0 $0

This project will assist the state in acheiveing its clean energy goals.

Fiscal Impacts

Additional Comments from IDA

Benefit*

$1,784,016 $1,631,606
$987,439 $987,439
$987,439

$0
$987,439

$0

$44,435
$0

$6,912

$51,347 $51,347
$51,347 $51,347
$44,435

$1,682,953$1,835,362

$1,682,953 $518,924

$0
$6,912

$0

Cost*
$1,631,606

$51,347
$325,103
$193,821

$0



 

Error! Unknown document property name. 

FINAL RESOLUTION 

(TJA-NY-Cohocton Solar Farm, LLC Project) 

 

A regular meeting of the Steuben County Industrial Development Agency was convened 

on Thursday, June 22, 2023. 

 

The following resolution was duly offered and seconded, to wit: 

 

Resolution No. 06/2023 - 10 

 

 

RESOLUTION OF THE STEUBEN COUNTY INDUSTRIAL 

DEVELOPMENT AGENCY (i) ACKNOWLEDGING THE PUBLIC 

HEARING HELD WITH RESPECT TO THE TJA-NY-COHOCTON 

SOLAR FARM, LLC PROJECT ON FEBRUARY 14, 2023; (ii) 

AUTHORIZING FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE (AS MORE FULLY 

DESCRIBED BELOW) FOR THE BENEFIT OF TJA-NY-COHOCTON 

SOLAR FARM, LLC; (iii) MAKING A DETERMINATION WITH 

RESPECT TO ARTICLE 8 OF THE ENVIRONMENTAL 

CONSERVATION LAW AND 6 N.Y.C.R.R. PART 617; AND (iv) 

AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION AND DELIVERY OF A PROJECT 

AGREEMENT, LEASE AGREEMENT, LEASEBACK AGREEMENT, 

TAX AGREEMENT, MORTGAGE AND RELATED DOCUMENTS 

WITH RESPECT TO THE PROJECT.   

 

WHEREAS, by Title 1 of Article 18-A of the General Municipal Law of the State of 

New York, as amended, and Chapter 178 of the Laws of 1972 of the State of New York, as 

amended (hereinafter collectively called the "Act"), the STEUBEN COUNTY INDUSTRIAL 

DEVELOPMENT AGENCY (the "Agency") was created with the authority and power to own, 

lease and sell property for the purpose of, among other things, acquiring, constructing and 

equipping industrial, manufacturing and commercial facilities as authorized by the Act; and 

 

WHEREAS, TJA-NY-COHOCTON SOLAR FARM, LLC, for itself or on behalf of 

an entity formed or to be formed by it or on its behalf (collectively, the "Company"), has 

submitted an application (the "Application"), a copy of which is on file with the Agency, 

requesting the Agency's assistance with respect to a certain project (the "Project"), consisting of: 

(i) the acquisition by the Agency of a leasehold interest in approximately 36.408 acres of real 

property located at 11190 NYS Route 371, Town of Cohocton, New York and all other lands 

where by license or easement or other agreement the Company or its designees are making 

improvements that benefit the Project (the "Land", being more particularly identified as a portion 

of tax parcel number 030.00-01-005.200, as may be subdivided); (ii) the planning, design, 

construction and operation of a 5MWac PV solar electrical generation system, including panel 

foundations, inverters, transformers, interconnect wiring, utility connections, sitework, 

landscaping, fencing, security and related improvements (collectively, the "Improvements"); and 

(iii) the acquisition of and installation in and around the Land and Improvements by the 



 

  

  
 

Company of machinery, equipment, fixtures and other items of tangible personal property (the 

"Equipment"; and, together with the Land and the Improvements, the "Facility"); and 

 

WHEREAS, by resolution adopted by the Agency on January 26, 2023 (the "Inducement 

Resolution"), the Agency accepted the Application as submitted by the Company and, among 

other things, (i) described the Financial Assistance (as defined below) being contemplated by the 

Agency and (ii) authorized the Agency to hold a public hearing regarding the contemplated 

Financial Assistance; and 

 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 859-a of the Act, on Tuesday, February 14, 2023, at 

2:00 p.m., the Agency held a public hearing with respect to the Project and the proposed 

Financial Assistance being contemplated by the Agency (the "Public Hearing") whereat 

interested parties were provided a reasonable opportunity, both orally and in writing, to present 

their views.  A copy of the Notice of Public Hearing published and forwarded to the affected 

taxing jurisdictions at least ten (10) days prior to said Public Hearing are attached hereto as 

Exhibit A; and 

 

WHEREAS, pursuant to the New York State Environmental Quality Review Act, Article 

8 of the Environmental Conservation Law and the regulations adopted pursuant thereto at 6 

N.Y.C.R.R. Part 617, as amended (collectively referred to as "SEQRA"), the Agency must 

satisfy the applicable requirements set forth in SEQRA, as necessary, prior to making a final 

determination whether to undertake the Project; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Town of Cohocton Joint Planning Board (the "Planning Board"), as lead 

agency, conducted a coordinated review of the Project pursuant to SEQRA, which resulted in the 

issuance of a negative declaration by the Planning Board, dated November 3, 2022 (the 

"Negative Declaration) attached hereto as Exhibit B, concluding the SEQRA process; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Agency desires to adopt a resolution (i) acknowledging that the Public 

Hearing was held in compliance with the Act, (ii) authorizing the negotiation, execution and 

delivery by the Agency of a Project Agreement, Lease Agreement, Leaseback Agreement, Tax 

Agreement and related documents, and (iii) authorizing the Financial Assistance to the 

Company. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE STEUBEN COUNTY 

INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY AS FOLLOWS: 

 

Section 1. The Public Hearing held by the Agency Tuesday, February 14, 2023, at 

2:00 p.m., concerning the Project and the Financial Assistance was duly held in accordance with 

the Act, including but not limited to the giving of at least ten (10) days published notice of the 

Public Hearing (such notice also provided to the Chief Executive Officer of each affected tax 

jurisdiction), affording interested parties a reasonable opportunity, both orally and in writing, to 

present their views with respect to the Project. 

 

Section 2. The Planning Board has conducted a coordinated review of the Project 

pursuant to Article 8 of the Environmental Conservation Law and 6 N.Y.C.R.R. Part 617 



 

  

  
 

(collectively referred to as "SEQRA"). In addition to the Planning Board classifying the Project 

as a "Type 1" action pursuant to SEQRA, the Planning Board also issued a Negative Declaration 

on November 7, 2022, determining that the Project did not present a potential significant adverse 

environmental impact. The Agency, having reviewed the materials presented by the Company, 

including but not limited to, the Full Environmental Assessment Form, further determines that 

the Project does not pose a potential significant adverse environmental impact and thus ratifies 

the Negative Declaration previously issued by the Planning Board pursuant to 6 N.Y.C.R.R. Part 

617.7. 

 

Section 3. The Agency is hereby authorized to provide to the Company financial 

assistance in the form of (a) a sales and use tax exemption for purchases and rentals related to the 

acquisition, construction, reconstruction, renovation and equipping of the Project and (b) a 

partial real property tax abatement structured through the Tax Agreement (collectively, the 

"Financial Assistance"). 

 

Section 4. Based upon the representation and warranties made by the Company in the 

Application, the Agency hereby authorizes and approves the Company, as its agent, to make 

purchases of goods and services relating to the Project and that would otherwise be subject to 

New York State and local sales and use tax in an amount up to approximately $7,662,273.50, 

which result in New York State and local sales and use tax exemption benefits ("Sales and Use 

Tax Exemption Benefits") not to exceed $387,640.83.  The Agency agrees to consider any 

requests by the Company for increase to the amount of Sales and Use Tax Exemption Benefits 

authorized by the Agency upon being provided with appropriate documentation detailing the 

additional purchases of property or services, and, to the extent required, the Agency authorizes 

and conducts any supplemental public hearing(s). 

 

Section 5. Pursuant to Section 875(3) of the Act, the Agency may recover or 

recapture from the Company, its agents, consultants, subcontractors, or any other party 

authorized to make purchases for the benefit of the Project, any Sales and Use Tax Exemption 

Benefits taken or purported to be taken by the Company, its agents, consultants, subcontractors, 

or any other party authorized to make purchases for the benefit of the Project, if it is determined 

that: (i) the Company, its agents, consultants, subcontractors, or any other party authorized to 

make purchases for the benefit of the Project, is not entitled to the Sales and Use Tax Exemption 

Benefits; (ii) the Sales and Use Tax Exemption Benefits are in excess of the amounts authorized 

to be taken by the Company, its agents, consultants, subcontractors, or any other party authorized 

to make purchases for the benefit of the Project; (iii) the Sales and Use Tax Exemption Benefits 

are for property or services not authorized by the Agency as part of the Project; (iv) the 

Company has made a material false statement on its application for financial assistance; (v) the 

Sales and Use Tax Exemption Benefits are taken in cases where the Company, its agents, 

consultants, subcontractors, or any other party authorized to make purchases for the benefit of 

the Project fails to comply with a material term or condition to use property or services in the 

manner approved by the Agency in connection with the Project; and/or (vi) the Company obtains 

mortgage recording tax benefits and/or real property tax abatements and fails to comply with a 

material term or condition to use property or services in the manner approved by the Agency in 

connection with the Project (collectively, items (i) through (vi) hereby defined as a "Recapture 

Event"). 



 

  

  
 

 

As a condition precedent of receiving Sales and Use Tax Exemption Benefits and real 

property tax abatement benefits, the Company, its agents, consultants, subcontractors, or any 

other party authorized to make purchases for the benefit of the Project, must (i) if a Recapture 

Event determination is made by the Agency, cooperate with the Agency in its efforts to recover 

or recapture any Sales and Use Tax Exemption Benefits, mortgage recording tax benefits and/or 

real property tax abatement benefits, and (ii) promptly pay over any such amounts to the Agency 

that the Agency demands, if and as so required to be paid over as determined by the Agency. 

 

Section 6. Subject to the Company executing the Project Agreement and the delivery 

to the Agency of a binder, certificate or other evidence of liability insurance policy for the 

Project satisfactory to the Agency, the Agency hereby authorizes the Company to proceed with 

the acquisition, construction and equipping of the Project and hereby appoints the Company as 

the true and lawful agent of the Agency: (i) to acquire, reconstruct, renovate and equip the 

Project; (ii) to make, execute, acknowledge and deliver any contracts, orders, receipts, writings 

and instructions, as the stated agent for the Agency with the authority to delegate such agency, in 

whole or in part, to agents, subagents, contractors, and subcontractors of such agents and 

subagents and to such other parties as the Company chooses; and (iii) in general, to do all things 

which may be requisite or proper for completing the Project, all with the same powers and the 

same validity that the Agency could do if acting in its own behalf; provided, however, the Project 

Agreement shall expire on December 31, 2024 (unless extended for good cause by the Executive 

Director of the Agency) if the Lease Agreement, the Leaseback Agreement and the Tax 

Agreement contemplated have not been executed and delivered 

 

Section 7. The Chairman, Vice Chairman and/or the Executive Director of the 

Agency are hereby authorized, on behalf of the Agency, to negotiate and execute (A) the Project 

Agreement, pursuant to which the Agency will appoint the Company as its agent to undertake the 

Project, (B) the Lease Agreement, pursuant to which the Company leases the Project to the 

Agency, (C) the related Leaseback Agreement, pursuant to which the Agency leases its interest 

in the Project back to the Company, and (D) the Tax Agreement; provided (i) the rental 

payments under the Leaseback Agreement include payments of all costs incurred by the Agency 

arising out of or related to the Project and indemnification of the Agency by the Company for 

actions taken by the Company and/or claims arising out of or related to the Project; and (ii) the 

terms of the Tax Agreement are consistent with the Agency's Uniform Tax Exemption Policy or 

the procedures for deviation have been complied with. 

 

 Section 8. The Chairman, Vice Chairman and/or Executive Director of the Agency 

are hereby authorized, on behalf of the Agency, to execute, deliver and record any mortgage, 

assignment of leases and rents, security agreement, UCC-1 Financing Statements and all 

documents reasonably contemplated by these resolutions or required by any lender/financial 

institution identified by the Company (the "Lender") up to a maximum principal amount 

necessary to undertake the Project, acquire the Facility and/or finance or re-finance equipment 

and other personal property and related transactional costs (hereinafter, with the Lease 

Agreement, Leaseback Agreement and Tax Agreement, collectively called the "Agency 

Documents"); and, where appropriate, the Secretary or Assistant Secretary of the Agency is 

hereby authorized to affix the seal of the Agency to the Agency Documents and to attest the 



 

  

  
 

same, all with such changes, variations, omissions and insertions as the Chairman, Vice 

Chairman and/or Executive Director of the Agency shall approve, the execution thereof by the 

Chairman, Vice Chairman and/or Executive Director of the Agency to constitute conclusive 

evidence of such approval; provided in all events recourse against the Agency is limited to the 

Agency’s interest in the Project. 

 

Section 9. The officers, employees and agents of the Agency are hereby authorized 

and directed for and in the name and on behalf of the Agency to do all acts and things required 

and to execute and deliver all such certificates, instruments and documents, to pay all such fees, 

charges and expenses and to do all such further acts and things as may be necessary or, in the 

opinion of the officer, employee or agent acting, desirable and proper to effect the purposes of 

the foregoing resolutions and to cause compliance by the Agency with all of the terms, covenants 

and provisions of the documents executed for and on behalf of the Agency. 

 

Section 10.  In the event that the Company does not close with the Agency on the 

proposed financial assistance within twelve (12) months of the date of the Inducement 

Resolution, the Agency reserves the right to rescind and cancel this resolution and all approvals 

made hereunder or under any other Agency resolution or action. 
  

Section 11. These Resolutions shall take effect immediately. 

 

The question of the adoption of the foregoing Resolution was duly put to a vote on roll 

call, which resulted as follows: 

 

 

   Yea  Nay  Absent  Abstain 

 

Mark R. Alger   [ ] [ ] [ ] [ ] 

Scott J. Van Etten  [ ] [ ] [ ] [ ] 

Anthony Russo  [ ] [ ] [ ] [ ] 

Dean Strobel    [ ] [ ] [ ] [ ] 

Mike Davidson  [ ] [ ] [ ] [ ] 
Christine G. Sharkey  [ ] [ ] [ ] [ ] 

Michelle Caulfield  [ ] [ ] [ ] [ ] 

 

 

 

The Resolutions were thereupon duly adopted. 



 

  

  
 

SECRETARY'S CERTIFICATION 

(TJA-NY-Cohocton Solar Farm, LLC Project) 

 

 

STATE OF NEW YORK  ) 

COUNTY OF STEUBEN  ) ss.: 

 

I, the undersigned, Secretary, of the Steuben County Industrial Development Agency, DO 

HEREBY CERTIFY: 

 

That I have compared the annexed extract of minutes of the meeting of the Steuben 

County Industrial Development Agency (the "Agency"), including the resolution contained 

therein, held on June 22, 2023, with the original thereof on file in the office of the Agency, and 

that the same is a true and correct copy of the proceedings of the Agency and of such resolution 

set forth therein and of the whole of said original insofar as the same related to the subject 

matters therein referred to. 

 

I FURTHER CERTIFY, that all members of said Agency had due notice of said meeting, 

that the meeting was in all respects duly held and that, pursuant to Article 7 of the Public 

Officers Law (Open Meetings Law), said meeting was open to the general public, and that public 

notice of the time and place of said meeting was duly given in accordance with such Article 7. 

 

I FURTHER CERTIFY, that there was a quorum of the members of the Agency present 

throughout said meeting. 

 

I FURTHER CERTIFY, that as of the date hereof, the attached resolution is in full force 

and effect and has not been amended, repealed or modified. 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed the seal of said 

Agency this ___ day of ________________, 2023. 

 

 

 

              

        Secretary 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 



 

  

  
 

EXHIBIT A 

 

Notice Documents 

 

[See Attached]



 

 

EXHIBIT B 

 

Negative Declaration of Town of Cohocton Joint Planning Board  

 

[See Attached] 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

































                                               Proposal 

 

  
Date: 

5/30/2023 

 Tom Sestak Construction To: 
Steuben IDA 

 124 E.William St  Of (company): 
Rout 54 

 Bath N.Y. 14810 City, State, ZIP: 
Bath NY 14810 

 (607)776-0123 Good until: 
 

            Cell Phone #(607)329-2557 
Project name: 

Misc Work  

 

 

--------------Misc Work -------------- 

1. Fix all downspouts---- Material and labor $165.00 

2. Install new light on front porch ----Labor $75.00 ( does not include light if you want me to purchase one 

$75.00 extra)  

3. New handrail in the basement --- Material and labor $456.23 

4. Replace stairs outback  with railing on both sides ----Material and labor $964.54(includes staining or 

painting) 

5. Replace windows in the basement --- Window cost  $175.00 each---Material 45.00 per window  ---labor 

$100 per window  

6. Replace 5’ x 6’ 8” door in basement ---- Door cost $1800.00 Material $150.00---Labor $350.00 

7. Replace window in the door and paint door --- window cost $759.21—paint material for door $145.00---

Labor to install window and paint door $850.00 

8. Disposal fees $56.00 

 

 

I propose to furnish all labor, complete in accordance with above specifications, for the  

sum of:  Dollars $  

 

Payments to be made as follows: ½ when I start, ½ upon completion 

  

 

Contractor’s signature: 
 

 

 

 

 
 



 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

TO:  Ryan Silva 

FROM:  Diana Ostroff, Amy Kramer, Casey Fenton 

DATE:  June 13, 2023 

RE:  2023 Legislative Session Update 

 

 

Both Houses of the Legislature have adjourned at the call of their leaders, marking the end of the 

regularly scheduled 2023 Legislative Session. The Assembly has already indicated plans to return to 

Albany next week to address select policy issues their House did not have time to pass, including a 

compact with the Seneca Nation and a wrongful conviction bill, both already passed by the Senate.  

 

New legislation can continue to be introduced throughout the remainder of the year, and bills that have 

passed both Houses can be sent to the Governor for action at any time. This report will detail bills that 

have been passed by both Houses this year but have not yet been acted on by the Governor. We will 

continue to monitor these bills and engage on your behalf as needed.  

 

Legislation  

Passed Both Houses  

This includes all legislation of interest that has passed both Houses during the 2023 Legislative Session, 

and has not yet been acted on by the Governor.  

S.1045 (Cooney)/A.1567 (McDonald) – Includes the value assessed on PILOTs in the tax cap growth 

formula.   

S.520-A (Comrie)/A.4847-A (Jacobson) - Prohibits individuals in certain positions from taking any 

position with a business or entity doing business with an agency or industrial development authority. 

• This legislation was vetoed by Governor Hochul in 2022 after NYSEDC raised concerns and 

proposed chapter amendments to the sponsors and Executive. In her veto message, the Governor 

stated this legislation conflicts with existing standards in the GMU, and poses operational 

challenges for IDAs.  

 

S.6999 (Addabbo)/A.5969 (Williams) – Exempts notices for certain PILOTs in New York City.  

 

S.6102 (Martinez)/A.6565 (Thiele) – This bill extends the open auction bond sale pilot program an 

additional two years.  

 

S.1690-A (Sanders)/A.6716 (Hunter) – Establishes a program with ESD to focus on small businesses 

located in highly distressed areas and minority owned business, and expands the Pursuit Lending 



Corporation to establish underwriting standards to assist minatory business enterprises and small 

businesses in highly distressed areas.  

 

S.4887 (Gianaris)/A.5608 (Reyes) – Requires utility companies or their contractors to pay prevailing 

wage on projects where a permit to use, excavate, or open a street is required to be issued.  

 

S.6056 (Ryan)/A.7333 (Bronson) – Adds including high-speed broadband as a consideration in the Urban 

& Community Development Program and the Restore New York Communities Initiative.  

 

Priority Legislation  

This includes priority legislation that did not pass both Houses this Session.  

S.1717 (Skoufis)/A.22-A (Magnarelli) – This legislation is intended to require IDAs to utilize clawbacks 

in certain situations and prohibit IDAs from offering financial assistance to a project already in 

development.  

• Sponsors in both Houses moved the bill, which was ultimately not passed in either House. 

Assemblyman Magnarelli agreed to hold the bill until further amendments could be made.  

S.89 (Ryan)/A.351 (Bronson) – Would prohibit IDAs from waiving taxes that would otherwise go to a 

school.  

• The sponsors continue to push this bill in the press, but it has not moved from its origin 

committee in either House. Senate counsel said the bill would be a heavy lift.  

S.2727 (Skoufis)/A.3715-A (Paulin) – Would require the Department of State to review and provide lists 

of not-for-profit filings with the Authorities Budget Office.  

• After being passed by the Senate, this bill once again died on Third Reading in the Assembly.  

S.6544 (Martinez)/A.6858 (Thiele) – Would clarify IDAs’ authority to develop housing.  

• The Senate and Assembly bills are not currently same-as bills. Heading into 2024, we will be 

working with the Assembly to address their focus on affordable housing while ensuring this 

legislation would expand the housing stock IDAs are developing.  

S.1737 (Krueger)/A.6762 (Solages) – Establishes a local authorities searchable subsidy and economic 

development benefits database.  

• This legislation did not advance in the Assembly after being newly introduced this year. The 

Senate passed the bill once again.  

S.2297 (Mayer)/A.5910 (Zebrowski) – Allows for the examination of projects by IDAs by county 

comptrollers.  

• This bill passed the Senate but did not advance in the Assembly.  

 

S.6312 (Kennedy)/A.6777 (Jones) - Establishes a state disaster emergency grant and loan program 

administered by industrial development agencies for certain small businesses. 

• This bill passed the Senate but did not advance in the Assembly. Heading into 2024, we will 

continue to ask MA Jones to make this a priority.  


